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2018

(

)

Alibaba Group
Holding Ltd.

3,455

577,005.

00

167.

01

616,856

178.

54

Kweichow Moutai
Co Ltd

4,000

2,393,068.

49

598.

27

2,648,674

662.

17

China Yuhua
Education Corp
Ltd

740,000

2,714,031.

40

.67

3,078,400

.16

Tencent Holdings
Ltd

7,800

2,999,381.

97

384.

54

3,049,800

391.

00

Industrial &
Commercial Bank
of China Ltd

398,000

2,636,379.

86

.62

2,778,040

.98

Sands China Ltd

59,600

2,196,844.

68

36.

86

2,726,700

45.

75

Chow Tai Fook
Jewellery Group
Ltd

35,000

2,032,411.

15

58.

07

2,429,000

69.

40

Galaxy
Entertainment
Group Ltd

235,800

1,780,516.

37

.55

2,395,728

10.

16

Techtronic
Industries Co.
Ltd

43,000

2,042,512.

04

47.

50

1,995,200

46.

40

10

Ping An Insurance
Group Co of China
Ltd

24,000

1,772,114.

16

73.

84

1,861,200

T7.

55

11

Chinasoft
International Ltd

310,000

1,435,101.

60

.63

1,801,100

.81

12

China Xinhua
Education Group
Ltd

567,000

1,848,420.

00

.26

1,735,020

.06

13

Luk Fook Holdings
International Ltd

51,000

1,557,043.

77

30.

53

1,680,450

32.

95

14

AlA Group Ltd

23,800

1,653,345.

54

69.

47

1,682,660

70.

70

15

China
Construction Bank
Corp

195,000

1,121,097.

90

.75

1,622,400

.32

16

0-Net
Technologies
Group Ltd

301,000

1,655,903.

34

.50

1,520,050

.05

17

PetroChina Co Ltd

260,000

1,600,068.

60

.15

1,505,400

.79

18

SHIC Environment
Holdings Ltd

517,400

2,069,594.

83

.00

1,329,718

.57

19

China
International
Capital Corp Ltd

67,600

814,646.

25

12.

05

1,211,392

17.

92

20

China ZhengTong
Auto Services
Holdings Ltd

188,000

1,360,772.

20

.24

1,208,840

.43

21

Weibo Corp

1,272

127,947.

43

100.

59

145,669.44

114.

52

22

China Yongda
Automobiles
Services Holdings
Ltd

128,500

1,255,743.

12

.77

1,161,640

.04

23

Taiwan
Semiconductor
Manufacturing Co
Ltd

18,000

3,132,923.

58

174.

05

4,086,000

227.

00
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24 |Baidu Inc 540 125,640.86| 232.67| 135,486| 250.90| 1.7

25 [¥W6 Property 87,000 904,390.23|  10.40| 936,120  10.76] 1.5
Holding Ltd

26 ms'” Foods Co 218,000 763,970.10 3.50| 867,640 3.08| 1.4
Nine Dragons

27 |Paper Holdings 70,000 827,525.30 11.82 828,800 11.84] 1.4
Ltd

28 |CINa CITIC Bank 139,000 894,968.18 6.44| 786,740 5.66| 1.3
Corp Ltd

29 |cNooc Ltd 60,000 688,308.00|  11.47| 789,600]  13.16]1.3

30 |MediaTek Inc 9,000 2,703,641.13|  300.40| 3,060,000 340.00| 1.3

2018
32
27
9
7
6
5
5
4
2
2
1
100
2018
SFC
2018
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19,594 2,143 224.11 24,506
2008 12 31
29,948 3,275 446.17 48,789
2009 12 31
22,280 2,436 522.90 57,179
2010 12 31
10
17,138 1,874 430.74 47,101
2011 12 31
11
13,654 1,493 482.28 52,737
2012 12 31
12
10,160 1,111 551.55 60,312
2013 12 31
13
9,166 1,002 555.05 60,695
2014 12 31
14
8,249 902 543.11 59,389
2015 12 31
15
6,626 724 517.37 56,574
2016 12 31
16
8,578 938 709.45 77,578
2017 12 31
2017 7,831 856 623.85 68,218
7,951 869 635.86 69,531
8,106 886 650.38 71,119
8,198 896 673.14 73,608
8,242 901 680.50 74,413
10 8,481 927 697.94 76,320
11 8,482 928 699.22 76,460
12 8,578 938 709.45 77,578
2018 9,286 1,015 766.20 83,784
8,497 929 726.26 79,417
8,087 884 695.11 76,010
7,956 870 684.46 74,846
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49.20
2008 2008 12 31
99.09
2009 2009 12 31
17.20
2010 2010 12 31
10
17.62
2011 2011 12 31
11
11.97
2012 2012 12 31
12
14.36
2013 2013 12 31
13
0.63
2014 2014 12 31
14
2.15
2015 2015 12 31
15
4.74
2016 2016 12 31
16
37.13
2017 2017 12 31
100 x
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| FRIRSEOES (FBX—2)

(%)
120
80
40
]
-40
-80
-120

-A48.20

11.97 14.36

(200851818~ 2017%#H)

37.13
063

-2.15 -4,74

eD08F 2009 20105 2011%F
(MRER(%) =100 x(a -

b}

b

a = FRMEREO 108D KRR Es

b = HERMOEADED | OXE0RARES

20125%F 2013% 2014% 201658 20165 2017%

17,598 80,115 87,428
2008 2008 12 31 17,598 80,115 87,428
22,094 42,450 67,072

2009 2009 12 31 22,094 42,450 67,072
5,639 30,032 42,679

2010 2010 12 31 5,639 30,032 42,679
10 5,480 8,371 39,788
2011 2011 12 31 5,480 8,371 39,788
11 1,256 12,732 28,312
2012 2012 12 31 1,256 12,732 28,312
12 127 10,029 18,410
2013 2013 12 31 127 10,029 18,410
13 0 1,896 16,514
2014 2014 12 31 0 1,896 16,514
14 293 1,618 15,189
2015 2015 12 31 293 1,618 15,189
15 0 2,382 12,807
2016 2016 12 31 0 2,382 12,807
16 115 831 12,001
2017 2017 12 31 115 (831) (12,091)
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2017 12 31
JA VP
2017 12 31
2017
8,325,576 6(e), 9 8,792,378 961,446,534
1,337 146,201
3 65,734 7,188,013
6(d) 97,482 10,659,657
e 8,956,931 ____ 979,440,405
3 168,869 18,465,825
6(d) 99,546 10,885,355
6(a) 10,783 1,179,121
6(b) 62,001 6,779,809
6(c) 5,000 546,750
5 1,949 213,123
30,870 3,375,635
I 379,018 ____. 41,445,618
8,577,913 937,994,787
7 12,001
709.45 77,578
2018 25
32 33 38
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2017 12 31
2017
11,474 190,651 20,847,687
1,914 209,296
e 192,965 _____ 21,056,983
6(a) (125,392) (13,711,615)
6(b) (162,764) (17,798,243)
6(c) (60,000) (6,561,000)
6(d) (85, 656) (9,366,484)
(33,419) (3,654,368)
(30,073) (3,288,483)
6(d) (751) (82,122)
(4,051) (442,977)
(31,138) (3,404,940)
_______ (538,244) ____(58,310,231)
(340, 679) (37,253,249)
1,472,156 160,980,259
1,268,662 138,728,190
2,576 281,686
e 2,743,394 299,990,134
2,402,715 262,736,885

33 38
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2017
1,472,156 160,980,259
1,268,662 138,728,190

2,576 281,686

(340,679) (37,253, 249)

———— 2,402,715 = 262,736,885
77,316 8,454,505

(528,129) (57,750,906)

_______ (450,813) _ ___ (49,296,402)
1,951,902 213,440,484
6,626,011 724,554,303
8,577,913 937,994,787
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2017 12 31
2017

207,546 22,695,155

(11) (1,203)

1,914 209,296

18,951,007 2,072,292,615
(18,530,998)  (2,026,364,631)
(11,474) (1,254,682)
(467,725) (51,145,729)
e 150,259~ ___ 16,430,822
77,316 8,454,505

(528,129) (57,750,906)
_______ (450,813) ____ (49,296,402)
(300,554) (32,865,580)

298,490 32,639,882

(2,064) (225,698)

33 38
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2017 12 31
2000
21
2000 30
2017 12 31
JA VP
JA VP
JA VP
2000 17 2002
2003 11 27 JA VP 2004
2012 10 31
JA VP
2017 12 31
2017
302,869,583
170,094,273
JA VP 8,577,913
481,541,769
us
GAAP us
GAAP FASB
ASC 946 - ASC946
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more-likely-than-not 50
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more-likely-than-not

open tax year open
tax year
12
26
OFIIs
QFIHI QFlIs 2014 11 17
10
2014 11 14
2014 11 14 MoF SAT
CSRC QFIHI RQFI1
QFlIs ROFlIs
2014 11 17
2014 11 17 QFIls RQFIIs
2014 11 17

2014 11 17
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2015 2014 11 17
2015 30
QFI1/RQFII
2015 30
2014 11 17
10 10
10 SAT
SAT
SAT
2017 12 31
1.6
125,392 2017 12 31 10,783

15
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162,764 2017 12 31
62,001
10,000,000 0.32
40,000,000 0.25
0.20
( ) 3,000
5,000
60,000 2017 12 31
5,000
5,566
HSBC
HSBC HSBC
2017 1,675,843 4.49 3,187 0.19
HSBC HSBC
2017 12 31
2017
97,482
(99,546)
90

(751)
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820
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2017 12 31

2017
7,922,747 31,148 7,953,895
755,938 755,938
82,545 82,545
7,922,747 838,483 31,148 8,792,378

33 38
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62,775

(31,627)

31,148

(31,627)
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2017

(27.42)
219.50

39.66
(2.53)

37.13

(2.25)
(2.06)

(4.31)

4.70
2.06

6.76

2017 12 31
12,426
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JA VP
2017 12 31
6,298,819
China Construction Bank Corp H Shares 195,000 179,667 2.09
HSBC Holdings Plc 15,200 155,512 1.81
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Ltd H Shares 181,000 145,690 1.70
Scud Group Ltd 884,000 22,625 0.26
Zhuzhou CRRC Times Electric Co Ltd H Shares 6,900 44,899 0.52
China Communications Construction Co Ltd H Shares 69,000 78,409 0.91
ANTA Sports Products Ltd 15,000 68,047 0.79
Li Ning Co Ltd 99,000 80,194 0.94
Techtronic Industries Co Ltd 40,500 264,059 3.08
China Yuhua Education Corp Ltd 206,000 103,337 1.20
Galaxy Entertainment Group Ltd 40,000 320,944 3.74
Sands China Ltd 59,600 307,745 3.59
CPMC Holdings Ltd 141,000 111,689 1.30
China International Capital Corp Ltd 96,400 200,585 2.34
Guotai Junan International Holdings Ltd 377,000 118,198 1.38
Hong Kong Exchanges & Clearing Ltd 2,300 70,579 0.82
Huatai Securities Co Ltd H Shares 19,800 39,425 0.46
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JA VP
2017 12 31
6,298,819
PetroChina Co Ltd H Shares 260,000 181,331 2.11
Nissin Foods Co Ltd 193,000 81,009 0.94
Hengan International Group Co Ltd 26,500 294,183 3.43
China Life Insurance Co Ltd H Shares 54,000 169,647 1.98
China Pacific Insurance Group Co Ltd H Shares 14,400 69,195 0.81
New China Life Insurance Co Ltd H Shares 26,600 181,771 2.12
Ping An Insurance Group Co of China Ltd H Shares 33,500 348,742 4.07
Real Gold Mining Ltd 166,500 8,523 0.10
Nine Dragons Paper (Holdings) Ltd 35,000 56,076 0.65
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Co Ltd 54,000 73,387 0.86
China Overseas Land & Investment Ltd 24,000 77,241 0.90

KWG Property Holding Ltd 88,000 102,815 1.20
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JA VP
2017 12 31
6,298,819
China Yongda Automobiles Services Holdings Ltd 103,500 119,070 1.39
China ZhengTong Auto Services Holdings Ltd 103,500 104,765 1.22
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Ltd 284,200 298,222 3.48
Luk Fook Holdings (International) Ltd 19,000 81,573 0.95
ASM Pacific Technology Ltd 6,200 86,401 1.01
Chinasoft International Ltd 356,000 236,439 2.76
Tencent Holdings Ltd ( 400,880 ) 9,800 509,159 5.94
Cowell E Holdings Inc 244,000 82,432 0.96
Kingboard Laminates Holdings Ltd 127,000 197,949 2.31
VTech Holdings Ltd ( 562,394 ) 44,400 581,814 6.78
ZTE Corp H Shares 23,400 87,887 1.02
China Unicom (Hong Kong) Ltd 26,000 35,135 0.41
CITIC Telecom International Holdings Ltd 183,000 48,476 0.57
Huaneng Renewables Corp Ltd H Shares 248,000 84,101 0.98

6,508,947 75.88

68/290



EDINETOOOO
OO000D0000DO00DO0Oo(EL4980)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

JA VP
2017 12 31
255,212
SHIC Environment Holdings Ltd 517,400 199,439 2.33
JJ 199439 . 2.33_
181,570

Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Co Ltd 18,000 139,203 1.62
Primax Electronics Ltd 19,000 50,580 0.59
Synnex Technology International Corp 31,550 43,111 0.50
232,894 2.71
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JA VP
2017 12 31
792,579
Four Seasons Education Cayman Inc 7,896 71,064 0.83
Yum China Holdings Inc 975 39,020 0.46
Alibaba Group Holding Ltd ADR
403,484 3,599 620,576 7.23
Baidu Inc ADR 239 55,976 0.65
JD.com Inc ADR 1,239 51,319 0.60
NetEase Inc ADR 266 91,789 1.07
Weibo Corp ADR 801 82,871 0.97
JL.012,615 . 11.81
7,528,180 7,953,895 92.73
84,022
CICC Financial Trading Limited (Gree Electric
Appliances Inc) Wts 17/11/2020 12,300 82,545 0.96
82,545 0.96
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JA VP
2017 12 31
166,501
Value Partners Strategic Equity Fund 68,420
546,873

CICC Financial Trading (Inner Mongolia Yili Industrial

Group Co Ltd A Shrs) P Note 08/18/2020 35,000 173,040 2.02
CICC Financial Trading Ltd (Kweichow Moutai Co Ltd A

Shrs (SSC)) P Note 01/04/2021 1,000 107,117 1.25
CICC Financial Trading Ltd (Kweichow Moutai Co Ltd A

Shrs) ELN 03/19/2018 2,300 246,369 2.87
CICC Financial Trading Ltd (Wuliangye Yibin Co Ltd A

Shrs) ELN 12/17/2018 18,700 229,412 2.67

ST R 8.81

8,325,576 8,792,378 102.50

97,482 1.14

(311,947) (3.64)

8,577,913 100.00
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Value Parnars Inteligent Funds
= JA-VP Cliina New Confury Fund
Financial statemenis for it yesr ended 31 Docamber 2017

STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017

Note 2017
uss
Assefs
Investment in securities, at fair value (cost: US$8,325,576) 6(e), 9 B,792,378
Dividends recsivable 1,337
Amounts due from brokers 3 65,734
Cash and cash equivalents B(d) 97,482
Total assets 8,956,931
Liabilities
Amounts due to brokers 3 168,869
Bank overdraft 6(d) 99 546
Investment management fees payable B(a) 10,783
Performance fee payable 6(b) 62,001
Trustee fees payable 6(c) 5,000
Tax provision 5 1,849
Accrued expenses and other payables 30,870
Total liabilities 379,018
Net assets 8,577,913
Number of units In issue 7 12,091
Net asset value per unit 709.45

Approved and authorised for issue by the Manager and the Trustee on 25 April 2018.

Signed by:

Value Partners , Manager Bank of Bermuda ( ) Limited, Trustee
v (37 M

The notes on pages 12 to 32 and the investment schedule 38 form part

of these financial statements,
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Value Pariners lntelligent Funds
- JA-VF China New Canlury Fund

Financial stalemants for the year ended 31 Decamber 2047

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Dividend income (net of withholding tax of US$11,474)
Other income

Investment management fees
Performance fees

Trustee fees

Transaction fees

Professional fees

Auditors” remuneration

Bank charges

Annual fees

Other operating expenses

Net investment loss

Net realised gains on investments
Met change in unrealised gains/losses on investments
Net foreign exchange gains

Net realised gains and change in unrealised gain/losses
on investments and foreign currencies

Net increase in net assets resulting from operations

Note

6(a)
6(b)
6(c)
6(d)

6(d)

2017
uss

190,651
1,914

192,565

(125,392)
(162,764)
(60,000)
(85,656)
(33,419)
(30,073)
(751)
(4,051)
(31,138)

(533,244)

(340,679)

1,472,156
1,268,662
2,576

2,743,384

2,402,715

The notes on pages 12 to 32 and the investment schedule on pages 33 to 38 form part

of these financial statements.

73/290



EDINETOOOO
OO000D0000DO00DO0Oo(EL4980)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Value Partners [mtalligent Funds
- JA-VP China New Century Fund
Financial stalements for the yearended 31 December 2017

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

2017

uss
Net realised gains on investments 1,472,156
Net change in unrealised gains/ losses on investments 1,268,662
Net foreign exchange gains 2576
Net investment losses (340,679)
Netincrease in net assets resulting from operations 2402715
Units issued 77,316
Units redeemed (528,129)
Net decrease in net assets resulting from capital transactions (450,813)
Netincrease in net assets 1,951,802
Netasset
Beginning of year E,E?E,ﬂ“‘l
End of year 8577913

The notes on pages 12 to 32 and the investment schedule on pages 33 to 28 form part
of these financial statements.

10
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Valve Parlners Infelligent Funds
- JA-VP Ching New Canlury Fund
Financial statemenis for the year ended 31 December 2017

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

2017
Uss
Operating activities
Dividends received 207,546
Interest paid (11)
Other income received 1,914
Proceeds from sale of investments 18,951,007
Payments on purchase of investments (18,530,998)
Tax paid (11,474)
Operating expenses paid (467,725)
Net cash flows generated from operating activities 150,259
Financing activities
Proceeds from issue of units 77,316
Payments on redemption of units (528,129)
Net cash flows used in financing activities {(450,813)
Net decrease incash and cash equivalents (300,554)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 298,490
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year* (2,064)

" Includes the effect of bank overdrafts at year end.

The notes on pages 12 to 32 and the investment schedule on pages 33 to 38 form part
of these financial statements.

11
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Valve Partners Infelligent Funds

= JA-VP China New Cantury Fund
Finangial slatements for the year ended 31 December 2017

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL

Value Pariners Intelligent Funds (the “Trust”) is an open-ended umbrella unit trust
established under the laws of the Cayman Islands pursuant to a Trust Deed dated
21 .June 2000 (the “Trust Deed"), as amended. The Trust was registered under the
Mutual Funds Law of the Cayman lslands on 30 June 2000.

The Trust is able to issue units in various sub-funds and as at 31 December 2017, the
China Convergence Fund, JA-VP China New Century Fund, Chinese Mainland Focus
Fund and JA-VP Chugokutaiiku Focus Fund have been launched. The China
Convergence Fund, JA-VP China New Century Fund and Chinese Mainland Focus Fund
commenced operations on 17 July 2000, 7 March 2002 and 27 November 2003

respectively. The JA-VP Chugokutairiku Focus Fund commenced operations on
2 September 2004 and was terminated on 31 October 2012,

These financial statements have been prepared for the Value Partners Intelligent Funds
- JA-VP China New Century Fund (the “Sub-fund”). The financial statements of China
Convergence Fund and Chinese Mainland Focus Fund have been prepared individually
and consequently are not included in these financial statements.

As at 31 December 2017, the combined net assets of the Trust are as follows:

Combined

Name of sub-funds net assels
2017

Uss

China Convergence Fund 302,869,583
Chinese Mainland Focus Fund 170,084,273
JAVP China New Century Fund B.577.913
Value Partners Intelligent Funds 481,541,769

The investment activities of the Sub-fund are managed by Value Partners Limited (the
‘Manager’) and the administration of the Sub-fund is handled by Bank of Bermuda
(Cayman) Limited (the " Administrator”) which has delegated its role to HSBC Institutional
Trust Services (Asia) Limited.

The objective of the Sub-fund is to provide unitholders with medium to long-term capital
appreciation by investing in a diversified portfolio of enterprises which are either
(i) owned by private sector interests in the Greater China Region; or (i) considered by
the Manager to have the majority of their assets situated in, or the majority of their
income derived from operations in the Greater China Region.

12
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Value Partners intelligant Funds

= JA-VP China New Canfury Fund
Financial staferments for the year ended 31 December 2017

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in conformity with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles (“US GAAP") and the relevant provisions of the
Trust Deed, as amended. The Sub-fund is considered an investment company under
US GAAP and follows the accounting and reporting guidance applicable to investment
companies in Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB") Accounting Standards
Codification ("ASC") 946, Financial Services - Invesiment Companies ("ASC 946%). The
significant accounting policies adopted by the Sub-fund are as follows:

(a)  Basis of preparation

The measurement currency of the financial statements is United States dollars ("USD")
reflecting the fact that most of the fransactions are denominated in USD as well as Hong
Kong dollars (*"HKD") which is pegged to USD. Units of the Sub-fund are issued in USD
and distributions to investors are also made in USD.

The financial statements are presented in USD.
{b) Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with US GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expenses during the year.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

(c)  Foreign currency translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign currency exchange rate
ruling at the date of the fransactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated to USD at the foreign currency closing exchange rate
ruling at the date of the statement of assets and liabilities. Foreign currency exchange
differences relating to investments are included in gains and losses on investments. All
other foreign currency exchange differences relating to monetary items, including cash
and cash equivalents are presented as net foreign exchange gain or loss in the
statement of operations. Foreign cumrency exchange differences arising on realised
gains and losses on disposaks or seiiements of investments are recognised in the
statement of operations.

13
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Value Partners Infelligent Funds

= JA-VP Ching New Cenlury Fund
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(d)  Investments
i Classification

Investments consist of equity securities, investment funds, participation notes and
warrants. The Sub-fund classifies all its investments into trading securities, which are
bought and held principally for the purpose of selling them in the near term.

(i) Recognition

The Sub-fund recognises investments on the date it becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

A regular way purchase of financial assets is recognised using trade date accounting.
From this date any gains and losses arising from changes in fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities are recorded.

Financial liabilities are not recognised unless one of the parties has performed their
obligations under the contract.

(i) Fair value measurement principles

*Fair valug” is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in
the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the Sub-fund
has access atthat date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk.

When available, the Sub-fund measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted
price in an active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as “active” if
transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to
provide pricing information on an ongeing basis. The Sub-fund measures instruments
quoted in an active market at a last transacted price, because this price provides a
reasonable approximation of the exit price.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Sub-fund uses valuation
techniques that maximise the use of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of
uncbservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique incorporates all of the factors that
market participants would take into accountin pricing a transaction.

Investments in other unlisted investment funds are recorded at the net asset value per
share as reported by the administrators of such funds.

14
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Value Partners Intslligent Funds
= JA-VP China Naw Century Fund
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(d) Ihvestments (Continued)

(v)  Impairment

Financial assets that are stated at cost or amortised cost are reviewed at the date of
each statement of assets and liabiliies to determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Iif any such indication exists, an impaimnent loss is recognised in the
statement of operations as the difference between the asset's camying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss recognised on a financial
asset carried at amortised cost decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to
an event occumring after the write-down, the write-down is reversed through the
statement of operations.

(v) Derecognition

The Sub-fund uses the weighted average method to determine realised gains and losses
on derecognition.

(e) Interest income

Interest income s recognised in the statement of operations as it accrues, using the
original effective interest rate of the instrument calculated at the acquisition or origination
date. Interest income includes the amortisation of any discount or premium, fransaction
costs or other differences between the initial carrying amount of an interest-bearing
instrument and its amount at maturity calculated on an effective interest rate basis.

] Dividend income and expense
Dividend income relating to exchange-traded equity securities and dividend expense
relating to securities sold short are recognised in the statement of operations on the
ex-dividend date.
In some cases, the Sub-fund may choose to receive dividends in the form of additional
shares rather than cash. In such cases the Sub-fund recognises the dividend income for

the amount of the cash dividend alternative with the corresponding debit freated as an
additional investment.

(@  Expenses

All expenses, including investment management fees, performance fees and trustee
fees, are recognised in the statement of operations on an accrual basis.

15
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Value Partnoers intelligamnt Funds

- JA-VP Ching New Canlury Fund
Financigl staferments for the year ended 317 December 2017

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises current deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly
liguid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash, are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, and are held for the purpose of meeting
short-term cash commitments rather than for investment or other purposes.

Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand form an integral part of the Sub-fund
cash management and are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for
the purpose of the statement of cash flows.

Taxation

Under the current system of taxation in the Cayman Islands, the Sub-fund is exempt
from paying taxes on income, profits or capital gains. The Trust has received an
undertaking from the Govemor in Cabinet of the Cayman Islands exempting it from tax In
the Cayman Islands.

Dividend and interest income received by the Sub-fund may be subject to withholding tax
imposed in the country of origin. Investment income is recorded net of withholding tax
and is recognised in the statement of operations as incurred. Refer to note 5 for more
details.

Related parties

For the purpose of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related to the
Sub-fund if they have the ability, directly or indirectly, to control or exercise significant
influence over the Sub-fund in making financial and operating decisions. Related parties
may be individuals or entities.

AMOUNTS DUE FROMITO BROKERS

2017
uss
Sales awaiting setiement 65,734
Purchases awaiting settiement (168,889)

In accordance with the Sub-fund's policy of frade date accounting for regular way sale
and purchase fransactions, sales/purchases awaiting settlement represent amounts
receivable/payable for securities sold/purchased, but not yet settled.

16
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Valuwa Partrers Intelligent Funds
- JA-VP China Mew Canlury Fund
Financiel statements for the year ended 37 December 2047

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS

The Sub-fund maintains positions in a variety of derivative and non-derivative financial
instruments as dictated by its invesiment management strategy. The Sub-fund's
investment schedule comprises listed equity securities, warrants, an investment in a
close-ended fund and participation notes.

The Sub-fund's investing activities expose it to various types of risk that are associated
with the financial instruments and markets in which it invests. The most important types
of financial risk to which the Sub-fund is exposed to are market risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk.

Asset allocation is determined by the Manager who manages the distribution of the
assels to achieve the investment objective. Divergence from target asset allocations
and the composition of the portfolio is monitored by the Manager.

The nature and extent of the financial instruments outstanding at the date of the
statement of assets and liabilities and the risk management policies employed by the
Sub-fund are discussed below.

Market risk

Market risk embodies the potential for both losses and gains and includes currency risk,
interest rate risk and price risk.

The Sub-fund’s strategy on the management of investment risk is driven by the
Sub-fund's investment objective. The investment objective of the Sub-fund is to provide
unitholders with medium to long-term capital appreciation (in USD terms). The
Sub-fund’s market risk is managed on a daily basis by the Manager in accordance with
policies and procedures in place. The Sub-fund's overall market positions are monitored
on a timely basis by the Manager.

Details of the Sub-fund’s investment portfolio as at the date of the statement of assets
and liabilities are disclosed in the investment schedule. All individual investments are
disclosed separately.

Currency risk

The Sub-fund may invest in financial instruments and enter into transactions
denominated in currencies other than its functional currency. Consequently, the
Sub-fund is exposed to risks that the exchange rate of its currency relative to other
foreign currencies may change in a manner that has an adverse effect on the value of
that portion of the Sub-fund’s assets or liabilities denominated in currencies other than
the USD.

The Sub-fund is not subject to significant amounts of currency risk because most of the
assets and liabilities are denominated in HKD which is pegged to the USD.
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Valwe Pariners Imledligent Funds
= JA-VIP China New Century Fund
Financial stafementsfor the year ended 31 December 2017

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)
(i) Currency risk (Continued)

The Sub-fund's total net exposure to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates as
at the date of the statement of assets and liabilites was as follows:

Net exposure
2017
uss

Mew Taiwan dollar 267,663
Japanese yen 11
Singapore dollar 199,439

467,213

As the HKD is pegged to the USD, the Sub-fund does not expect any significant
movements in the HKD/USD exchange rate.

(i) Interest rate risk
The majority of the Sub-fund's financial assets and liabilities are non-interest-bearing.

All interest-bearing financial assets mature or reprice in the short-term, no longer than
twelve months. As a result, the Sub-fund is subject to limited exposure to fair value
interest rate risk due to fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates. Any
excess cash and cash equivalents of the Sub-fund are invested in shori-term
instruments.

(i) Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the value of the instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes
in market prices, whether caused by factors specific to an individual investment, its
issuer or all factors affecting all instruments traded in the market.

As the majority of the Sub-fund’s financial instruments are carried at fair value with fair
value changes recognised in the statement of operations, all changes in market
conditions will directly affect net assets resulting from operations and the financial
instruments’ carrying amounts on the statement of assets and liabilities.

Price risk is mitigated by the Manager by constructing a diversified portfolio of
instruments traded on various markets. In addition, price risk may be hedged using
derivative financial instruments such as options, warrants or futures.
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Value Partners Infelligant Fumds
- JA-VP China New Canlury Fund
Financial staternants for the year ended 31 December 2017

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (Continued)
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an
obligation or commitment that it has entered into with the Sub-fund. Credit risk generally
is higher when a non-exchange-traded financial instrument is involved, because the
counterparty is not backed by an exchange clearing house.

The Sub-fund's exposure to credit risk is monitored by the Manager on an ongoing basis.

Credit risk arising on transactions with brokers relates to transactions awaiting
seftlement. Risk relating to unsettled transactions is considered small due to the short
seitlement period involved.

The carrying amounts of financial assets best represent the maximum credit risk
exposure on the statement of assets and liabilities.

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an
obligation or commifment that it has entered into with the Sub-fund. Credit risk generally
is higher when a non-exchange-traded financial instrument is involved, because the
counterparty is not backed by an exchange clearing house.

The Sub-fund's exposure to credit risk is monitored by the Manager on an ongoing basis.

Credit risk arising on transactions with brokers relates to transactions awaiting
setflement. Risk relating to unsettled transactions is considered small due to the short
settliement period involved.

The carrying amounts of financial assets best represent the maximum credit risk
exposure on the statement of assets and liabilities.

As at 31 December 2017, there were no significant concentrations of credit risk to
counterparties except to the custodians and banks. Substantially all the financial
instruments are cleared through and held in custody primarily by one major international
institution. The Sub-fund is subject to credit risk to the extent that this institution may be
unable to fulfil its obligations either to return the Sub-fund's securities or repay amounts
owed, The institution is rated A1 per credit ratings issued by Moody's. The Sub-fund
does not anticipate any losses as a result of this concentration.

19

83/290



EDINETOOOO
OO000D0000DO00DO0Oo(EL4980)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Value Partners Infeliigent Funds

- JA-VP China New Century Fund
Financial stalemants for the year ended 31 December 2017

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (Continued)

(c)  Liquidity risk

The Sub-fund’'s Explanatory Memorandum provides for the daily creation and
cancellation of units and it is therefore exposed to the liquidity risk of meeting unitholder
redemptions at any time.

The Sub-fund invested in a close-ended fund which is not traded in an organised public
market. The Sub-fund also invested in other equities which are suspended from trading
as at year end. These investments generally may be illiquid. As a result, the Sub-fund
may not be able to liquidate these investments quickly at an amount close to its fair
value in order to meet its liquidity requirements, or to respond to specific events such as
deterioration in the creditworthiness of any particular issuer.

The Sub-fund predominantly invested in listed equity securities which are considered to
be readily realisable as they are all listed on major stock exchanges.

5 TAXATION

fa)  There are no taxes onincome or gains in the Cayman Islands as the Trust has received
an undertaking from the Governor in Cabinet of the Cayman Islands exempting it from all
local income, profits and capital gains taxes. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes
is included in these financial statements.

{b) The Sub-fund recognises the tax benefits of uncertain tax positions only where the
position is more likely than not (i.e. greater than 50 percent) to be sustained assuming
examination by a taxing authority based on the technical merits of the position. In
evaluating whether a tax position has met the recognition threshold, the Sub-fund must
presume that the position will be examined by the appropriate taxing authority that has
full knowledge of all relevant information. A tax position that meets the more likely than
not recognition threshold is measured to determine the amount of benefit to recognise in
the Sub-fund's financial statements. Income tax and related interest and penalties would
be recognised by the Sub-fund as tax expense in the statement of operations if the tax
positions were deemed to not meetthe more likely than not threshold.

The Sub-fund analyses all open tax years for all major taxing jurisdictions. Open tax
years are those that are open for exam by taxing authorities, as defined by the Statute of
Limitations in each jurisdiction. The Sub-fund identifies its major tax jurisdictions as the
Cayman Islands and foreign jurisdictions where the Sub-fund makes significant
investments. The Sub-fund has no examinations by taxing authorities in progress.

Management has analysed the Sub-fund's tax positions, and has concluded that no
liability for unrecognised tax benefits should be recorded related to uncertain tax
positions. Further, management is not aware of any tax positions for which it is
reasonably possible that the total amounts of unrecognised tax benefits will significantly
change in the next twelve months.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5 TAXATION (Continued)

{c)  No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the financial statements as
the Trust is exempt from taxation under section 26A(1A) of the Hong Kong Inland
Revenue Ordinance.

{d) In preparing these financial statements, the Manager has made certain assumptions and
used various estimates concemning the tax exposure which is dependent on what might
happen in the future. The resulting accounting estimates may not equal the related
actual results.

The Sub-fund invests in derivative instruments linked to “A” shares, issued by one or
more Qualified Foreign Institutional Investors ("QFlls") or their affiliates as well as "A"
shares of companies listed in the PRC, via the Manager's QFIl quota. Prior to 17
November 2014, a 10% tax was withheld by the QFlls on all PRC sourced dividends and
realised capital gains.

Notice issued on 14 November 2014

On 14 November 2014, the Ministry of Finance of the PRC (the "MoF"), the State
Administration of Taxation of the PRC ("SAT") and the China Securites Regulatory
Commission (the “CSRC") jointly issued the “Notice on temporary exemption of
Corporate Income Tax on capital gains derived from the transfer of equity investment
assets such as PRC domestic stocks by QFIl and RQFII (the “Notice™).

According to the Notice, amongst other things:

(i) QFlis and RQFIs, which do not have an establishment or place of business in the
PRC or have an establishment or place in the PRC but the income so derived in
the PRC is not effectively connected with such establishment, will be temporarily
exempt from corporate income tax on gains derived from the transfer of PRC equity
investment assets (including China “A" shares) effective from 17 November 2014;

(i) PRC corporate income tax will be imposed on gains by QFlls and RQFlls from
transfer of equity investment assets (including China “A”" shares) realised prior to
17 November 2014 in accordance with laws.

As a result of the issue of the Notice, the Manager has decided on the following changes
to the tax provisioning policy of the Sub-fund:

(i) The Sub-fund has ceased to provide PRC withholding income tax for realised gains
on derivative instruments linked to A" shares on or after 17 November 2014;

(i} No PRC withholding income tax provision is made for unrealised gains for China
A-shares. The tax provision made in relation to unrealised gains on the Sub-fund's

investments in derivatives on China equities has been released on 17 November
2014.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

TAXATION (Continued)
(Continued)
Notice issued on 14 November 2014 (Continued)

In June 2015, the Third Branch of Shanghai Municipal Office of the State Administration
of Taxation issued a notice and a tax filing deadline of 30 September 2015 for all
QFIVRQFII to declare and report the tax-related matters in relation to capital gains
realised from the disposal of PRC equity investments prior to 17 November 2014. The
Manager engaged a tax advisor fo file the tax return and required documents by 30
September 2015. No payment was made by the Sub-fund as there were no gross
realised gains derived from the disposal of “A" shares prior to 17 November 2014,

The Sub-fund also directly invests in "B” shares of companies listed in the PRC for
subscription by foreign investors and may be subject to PRC withholding tax of 10% on
dividend income. A 10% withholding tax may also be payable on the capital gains
derived from the sale of “B" shares. Under current PRC tax laws, gains derived from the
transfer of shares of PRC companies by non-residents should be subject to a
withholding tax of 10%, unless exempt under relevant tax treaties. The SAT has
remained silent on the collection of withholding tax for capital gains and until further
clarification is issued by the SAT, the Manager considers that there is significant
uncertainty in respect of whether the Sub-fund has any liability and the extent of such
liability with respect to tax on capital gains derived from the sale of PRC "B” shares. In
making this assessment, the Manager has considered (i) the current position of the SAT,
(iiy the absence of a withholding mechanism of the relevant tax and (jii) current market
practice. Accordingly, as at 31 December 2017, the Sub-fund had not made any
provision for the tax on capital gains on “B" shares based on the above judgments made

by the Manager.

The Manager will continually reassess the withholding income tax provisioning approach
on an on-going basis taking into account any recent development in the market.

The provision for taxation in the statement of assets and liabilities represents PRC

withholding tax provision as at year end relating to tax refunded by broker during the
year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

6 RELATED PARTIES

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Sub-fund entered into the following material related party transactions
for the year. All such transactions were entered into in the ordinary course of business
and on normal commercial terms.

(a) Investment management fees

The Manager, an investment management company incorporated in British Virgin
Islands, has implemented the investment strategy as specified in the Explanatory
Memorandum. Under the Investment Management Agreement, the Manager receives a
management fee monthly in arrears at an annual rate of 1.6% of the net assets on each
valuation day as defined in the Explanatory Memorandum. An investment management
fee of US$125,392 was charged to the statement of operations during the year.
Included in liabilities as at 31 December 2017 is investment management fees payable
of US$10,783.

{b)  Performancefees

Under the Investment Management Agreement, the Manager is also entitled to a
performance fee, calculated at a high-on-high basis, if the net asset value per unit as at
the last valuation day of a calendar quarter (prior to the accrual of any performance fee
for that calendar quarter) exceeds the higher of:

(i) the net asset value per unit as at the close of business on the last valuation day in
the last calendar quarter in respect of which a performance fee was paid to the
Manager in respect of the Sub-fund, after payment of such performance fee; and

(i) the initial offer price at which the units were first offered.

The rate of performance fees payable is 15% and is calculated by multiplying this fee
rate by the product of the excess of the net asset value per unit (calculated as stated
above) and the average of the number of units in issue immediately after each valuation
day in the relevant calendar quarter. Performance fees of US$162,764 were charged to
the statement of operations during the year. Performance fees payable of US$62,001
are included in liabilities as at 31 December 2017.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

RELATED PARTIES (Continued)
Trustee fees
The Bank of Bermuda (Cayman) Limited, the Trustee of the Sub-fund, is entitied to

trustee fees which are determined based on the net asset value of the Sub-fund as
below:

Trusfee fee
per annum
shown as %
of net assel
value

Net asselvalue
First US$10 million 0.32%
Next US340 million 0.25%
Thereafter 0.20%

Under the terms of the Trust Deed (as amended), the Trustee is also entitled to a fixed
annual fee of US$3,000.

The trustee fees are subject to a monthly minimum of US$5,000.

Trustee fees of US$60,000 were charged to the statement of operations during the year.
Included in liabiliies as at 31 December 2017 is trustee fees payable of US$5,000.

Transactions/balances with the group company of the Trustee

During the year, the Custodian of the Sub-fund, HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia)
Limited, which is a group company of the Trustee of the Sub-fund, charged fransaction
fees of US$5,566 for handling each purchase or sale of investments.

During the year, the Sub-fund utilised the services of The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited ("HSBC"), which is a group company of the Trustee of the
Sub-fund, in its purchase and sale of investments. Details of such transactions executed
and fees paid are set out below:

Valve of transacfions % of tolal valve of  Commission Average
execuled through transactions of and other fees commission

HSBC the Sub-fund  paid to HSBC rate
Uss uss
Year 2017 1,675,843 4 45% 3,187 0.19%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

RELATED PARTIES (Continued)
Transactions/balances with the group company of the Trustee (Continued)

The Sub-fund maintains bank accounts with HSBC. The Sub-fund may also maintain
cash deposits which were held as collateral for transactions involving borrowed
securities with HSBC during the year. No cash deposits were held as collateral as at 31
December 2017. Other information relating to the bank accounts and borrowed
securities is set out below:

2017
uss
Bank accounts
Bank balance 7,482
Bank overdraft (99,546)
Interest income 80
Bank charges (751)

Investment in a fund managed by a related party of the Manager
As at 31 December 2017, the Sub-fund held 68,420 units in Value Partners Strategic
Equity Fund, a fund managed by a related party of the Manager, with fair value of

USSENil. A cash distribution of US$1,824 was received from Value Pariners Strategic
Equity Fund as its underlying assets were liquidated during the year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

UNITS IN ISSUE
Number of
units
2017
As at 1 January 12,807
Subscription of units 115
Redemption of units (831)
As at 31 December 12,091

The rights attaching to each unit are as follows:

The holders of the units have the right to receive notice of, attend and vote at meetings
of the Sub-fund. The holder of each such unit has the right to one vote for each such
unit registered in his name. The holders are entiled to receive all dividends declared
and paid by the Sub-fund. Upon winding up, the holders are entitled to a return of capital
based on the net assets value per unit of the Sub-fund.

All distributable profits of the Sub-fund will be accumulated and no distribution of income
will be made from the Sub-fund, unless otherwise determined by the Manager.

SOFT COMMISSION ARRANGEMENTS

The Manager and/or any company associated with it and its delegates may enter into
soft dollars/commission sharing arrangements with brokers through which brokerage
transactions are entered on behalf of clients under management. The Manager may
receive, and are entitied to retain, research products and services (known as soft dollar
benefits) which are of demonstrable benefit to the Sub-fund (as may be permitted under
applicable rules and regulations) from brokers and other persons through whom
investment transactions are carried out (the “brokers”). Soft dollars may be received
from them provided that the quality of transaction execution is consistent with best
execution standards and brokerage rates are not in excess of the customary full-service
brokerage rates.

Such soft dollar benefits may include research and advisory services; economic and
political analysis; portfolio analysis, including valuation and performance measurement;
market analysis, data and quotation services and software incidental to the above goods
and services; clearing and custodian services and investment related publications. For
the avoidance of doubt, soft dollar benefits do not include travel, accommodation,
entertainment, general administrative goods and services, general office equipment or
premises, membership fees, employee salaries or direct money payments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

SOFT COMMISSION ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)

The Manager considers many judgemental factors deemed relevant in determining
whether a broker provides best execution. In general, investment orders are allocated to
brokers based on the range and overall quality of services offered by the broker. The
core factors in determining the quality of services are the execution performance and
capability of the broker. Other factors, such as the quality and quantity of research and
investment ideas offered, access to potential investee companies and commission rate
charges, would also be taken into consideration. Soft dollar benefits received from
brokers should not be a determinant factor on allocating orders among brokers. The
Manager has implemented policies and procedures to ensure that transactions executed
with brokers pursuant to a soft dollar commission sharing arrangement are conducted in
the best execution standard. Soft dollars benefits received by the Manager are used to
facilitate in the Manager's investment management process, such benefits assist the
Manager in fulfilling its overall duty to clients and may be used in servicing any or all of
the Manager’s client accounts over which the Manager exercises investment discretion.
The Manager does not usually attempt to allocate/attribute the soft dollar benefits to
individual client account, as goods and services obtained may be beneficial to all clients
in general, including those client accounts that do not generate credit to acquire the soft
dollar benefits.

FAIR VALUE

The Sub-fund's investments are caried at fair value on the statement of assets and
liabilities. The carrying amounts of other financial assets and liabilities approximate fair
value due to the immediate or short-term nature of these financial instruments.

The Sub-fund utilises various methods to measure the fair value of its investments on a
recurring basis.  Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards
Codification Topic 820 (FASB ASC Topic 820) defines fair value, establishes a
consistent framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosure requirements
about fair value measurements. FASB ASC Topic 820, among other things, requires the
Sub-fund to maximise the use of observable inputs and minimise the use of
uncbservable input when measuring fair value.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

9 FAIR VALUE (Continued)
(a)  Fair value hierarchy

FASB ASC Topic 820 specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on whether
the inputs to those valuation techniques are observable or unobservable. The Sub-fund
utilises valuation technigues that maximise the use of cbservable inputs and minimise
the use of unobservable inputs to the extent possible. The Sub-fund determines fair
value based on assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or
liability in the principal or most advantageous market. When considering market
participant assumptions in fair value measurements, the following fair value hierarchy
distinguishes between observable and unobservable inputs, which are categorised in
one of the following levels:

- Level 1: Inputs that are quoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical instruments.

- Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (ie. derived from prices). This category
includes instruments valued using: quoted market prices in active markets for
similar instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that
are considered less than active; or other valuation techniques in which all
significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from market data.

-  Lewvel 3 Inputs that are unobservable. This category includes all instruments for
which the valuation technique includes inputs not based on observable data and
the unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the instrument's valuation.
This category includes instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for
similar instruments but for which significant unobservable adjustments or
assumptions are required to reflect differences between the instruments.

{b) Determination of fair value

The Sub-fund measures fair value using the procedures set out below for the investment
schedule measured at fair value.

When available and for quoted investments, the Sub-fund generally uses quoted market
prices in active markets to determine fair value, and classifies such items in Level 1.

In some cases where a market price is available and relevant to measure the fair value

of a particular investment, the Sub-fund will calculate the fair value of such investment by
reference to such market price, In which case the items are classified in Level 2.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

FAIR VALUE (Continued)
Determination of fair value (Continued)

If quoted market prices are not available, fair value is based upon interally developed
valuation techniques that use, where possible, current market-based or independently
sourced market parameters, such as interest rates, currency rates, option volatilites, etc.
ltems valued using such intemmally generated waluation techniques are classified
according to the lowest level input or value driver that is significant to the valuation.
Thus, an item may be classified in Level 3 even though there may be some significant
inputs that are readily observable, including market comparables of listed companies.

The Sub-fund follows the International Private Equity and Venture Capital Valuation
Guidelines for valuations in fair value hierarchy, in particular for Level 3, in which one or
more significant inputs or significant value drivers are unobservable.

ltems measured at fair value on a recurring basis
The following table presents for each of the fair value hierarchy levels the Sub-fund's

investment schedule that are measured at fair value on a recurming basks as at
31 December 2017,

2017

With

Quoted Quoted significant

market observable  unobservable

price inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
US$ Us$ uss Uss

Assets

Equity securities” 7922747 - 31,148 7,953,895
Investment fund - - - -
Participation notes - 755,938 - 755,838
Warrants - 82545 - 82,545
Total 7,922,747 838,483 31,148 8,792 378

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3
of the fair value hierarchy during the year.

" Please refer lo investment schedule on pages 33 fo 38 for portfolio holdings by
country and indusiry.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

FAIR VALUE (Continued)
Kems measured at fair value on a recurring basis (Continued)

The following table presents the changes in the Level 3 fair value category for the year
ended 31 December 2017. The Sub-fund classifies financial instruments in Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy when there is reliance on at least one significant unobservable
input to the valuation model. In addition to these unobservable inputs, the valuation
models for Level 3 financial instruments typically also rely on a number of inputs that are
readily observable either directly or indirectly. Thus, the gains and losses presented
below include changes in the fair value related to both observable and unobservable
inputs.

2017

Uss

Opening balance as at 1 January 62,775
Total gains or losses for the period

Net change in unrealised gains/ losses on investments (31,627)

Net realised gains on sale of investments -

Purchases, issues, sales and settlement -

Closing balance as at 31 December 31,148

Net unrealised losses* (31,627)

* Represenfs the amount of total net unrealised losses for the year, included in
eamings, atfributable to the change in fair value relaling to portfolio investments
classified as Level 3 that are still held as at 31 December 2017.

Transfers into/out of Level 3 are recognised based on the fair value at the end of the
reporting period.

The investments classified as Level 3 were valued based on last transacted price prior to
the date of suspension of the shares from the respective exchange in respect of the
equity securiies and net asset value in respect of the investment fund. The
unobservable inputs are not developed by the Manager in arriving at the fair value hence
no quantitative analysis is presented.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Operating performance per unit:
2017
Uss
Net asset value per unit as at 1 January 517.37
Income from investment operations:
MNet investment losses (27.42)
Net realised and change in unrealised gains/losses
on investments 219.50
Total gains from investment operations 192.08
Net asset value per unit as at 31 December 709.45
Total return:
Return before performance fee 39.66%
Performance fee (2.53)%
Return after performance fee 37.13%
Ratio of net investment losses to average net
assets:
Net investment losses before performance fee (2.25)%
Performance fee (2.08)%
Met investment losses after performance fee (4.31)%
Ratio of expenses to average net assets:
Expenses before performance fee 4.70%
Performance fee 2.068%
Total expenses 6.76%

|
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (Continued)

Net gain from investment operations per unit is calculated based on 12,426 units, which
represent the average number of units ocutstanding of the Sub-fund for the year ended
31 December 2017,

Total return is calculated by comparing the ending NAV per unit to the beginning NAV
per unit. An individual investor's return may vary from these based on the timing of
capital transactions.

Expense ratio is calculated taken as a whole. An individual investor's ratios may vary
from these ratios based on the timing of capital transactions.

INDEMNIFICATION

In the normal course of business, the Sub-fund enters into confracts that contain a
variety of representations which provide general indemnifications. The Sub-fund's
maximum exposure under these agreements is unknown as this would involve future

claims that may be against the Sub-fund that have not yet occurred. However, based on
experience, the Sub-fund expects the risk of loss to be remote.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
In preparing these financial statements, management has evaluated and disclosed all

material subsequent events up to 25 April 2018, the date that the financial statements
were issued.
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INVESTMENT SCHEDULE
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017
% of
Holdings  Fairvalue net assets
uss
Hong Kong (cost: US$6,298,819)
Banks
China Construction Bank Corp H Shares 195,000 179,667 2.09
HSBC Holdings Ple 15,200 185,512 1.81
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Ltd H
Shares 181,000 145,690 1.70
Capital Goods
Scud Group Lid 884,000 22,625 0.26
Zhuzhou CRRC Times Electric Co Ltd H Shares 6,900 44 899 0.52
Construction & Engineering
China Communications Construction Co Ltd H
Shares 69,000 78,409 0.91
Consumer Durables & Apparel
ANTA Sports Products Ltd 15,000 68,047 0.79
Li Ning Co Ltd 99,000 80,194 0.94
Techtronic Industries Co Lid 40,500 264,059 3.08
Consumer Services
China Yuhua Education Corp Ltd 206,000 103,337 1.20
Galaxy Entertainment Group Ltd 40,000 320,944 3.74
Sands China Ltd 59,600 307,745 3.59
Containers & Packaging
CPMC Holdings Ltd 141,000 111,689 1.30
Diversified Financials
China International Capital Corp Lid 96,400 200,585 2.34
Guotai Junan International Holdings Lid 377,000 118,198 1.38
Hong Kong Exchanges & Clearing Ltd 2,300 70,579 0.82
Huatai Securities Co Ltd H Shares 19,800 39,425 0.46
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INVESTMENT SCHEDULE
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 (Continued)

% of
Holdings  Fair value net sefs
Uss
Hong Kong (cost: US$6,298,819) (Continued)
Energy
PetroChina Co Ltd H Shares 260,000 181,331 2.1
Food Products
Nissin Foods Co Lid 193,000 81,009 0.94
Household & Personal Products
Hengan International Group Co Ltd 26,500 294,183 343
Insurance
China Life Insurance Co Ltd H Shares 54,000 169,647 1.98
China Pacific Insurance Group Co Ltd H Shares 14,400 69,195 0.81
New China Life Insurance Co Ltd H Shares 26,600 181,771 212
Ping An Insurance Group Co of China Ltd H
Shares 33,500 348,742 4.07
Materials
Real Gold Mining Ltd 166,500 8,523 0.10
Paper & Forest Products
Nine Dragons Paper (Holdings) Ltd 35,000 56,076 0.85
Pharmaceuticals
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Co Lid 54,000 73,387 0.86
Real Estate
China Overseas Land & Investment Ltd 24,000 77,241 0.80
KWG Property Holding Ltd 88,000 102,815 1.20
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INVESTMENT SCHEDULE
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 (Continued)

% of
Holdings  Fairvalue  net sels
uss
Hong Kong (cost: US$6,298,819) (Continued)
Retailing
China Yongda Automobiles Services Holdings
Ltd 103,500 119,070 1.39
China ZhengTong Auto Services Holdings Ltd 103,500 104,765 1.22
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Ltd 284,200 288,222 3.48
Luk Fook Holdings (International) Lid 19,000 81,573 0.95
Semiconductors & Semiconductor Equipment
ASM Pacific Technology Ltd 6,200 86,401 1.01
Software & Services
Chinasoft International Ltd 356,000 236,439 2.76
Tencent Holdings Ltd (cost: US$400,880) 8,800 509,159 5.94
Technology Hardware & Equipment
Cowell E Holdings Inc 244,000 82432 0.96
Kingboard Laminates Holdings Ltd 127,000 197,949 2.3
VTech Holdings Lid (cost US$ 562,394) 44 400 581,814 6.78
ZTE Corp H Shares 23,400 87,887 1.02
Telecommunication Services
China Unicom (Hong Kong) Ltd 26,000 35,135 0.41
CITIC Telecom International Holdings Ltd 183,000 48,476 0.57
Utilities
Huaneng Renewables Corp Ltd H Shares 248,000 84,101 0.98
Total Hong Kong listed equity securities in
long position 6,508,947 75.88
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INVESTMENT SCHEDULE
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 (Continued)

% of
Holdings  Fairvalue net asseis
Uss
Singapore (cost: US$255,212)
Utilities
SIC Environment Holdings Ltd 517,400 199,439 2.33
Total Singapore listed equity securities in
long position 199,439 2.33
Taiwan (cost: US$181,570)
Semiconductors & Semiconductor Equipment
Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Co Lid 18,000 139,203 1.62
Technology Hardware & Equipment
Primax Electronics Lid 19,000 50,580 0.59
Synnex Technology International Corp 31,550 43,111 0.50
Total Taiwan listed equity securities in long
position 232,804 271
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INVESTMENT SCHEDULE
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 (Continued)
% of
Holdings  Fair value nef assets
US$
United States (cost: US$792,579)
Consumer Services
Four Seasons Education Cayman Inc 7,896 71,064 0.83
Yum China Holdings Inc g75 39,020 0.46
Software & Services
Alibaba Group Holding Ltd ADR (cost
US$403,484) 3,599 620,576 7.23
Baidu Inc ADR 239 55,976 0.65
JD.com Inc ADR 1,239 51,319 0.60
MetEase Inc ADR 266 91,789 1.07
Weibo Corp ADR 801 82,871 0.97
Total United States listed equity securities in
long position 1,012,615 11.81
Total listed equity securities in long position
(cost: US$7,528,180) 7,953,895 92.73
Derivatives in long position (cost: US$84,022)
CICC Financial Trading Limited (Gree Electric
Appliances Inc) Wts 17/11/2020 12,300 82,545 0.28
Total derivatives in long position 82,545 0.96
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Vafue Parfners Infelligent Funds

- JA-VP China New Cantury Fund
Year ended 31 Decembar 2017

INVESTMENT SCHEDULE
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 (Continued)

% of
Holdings  Fairvalue netassels
Uss
Investment fund in long position (cost:

US$166,501)

Value Partners Strategic Equity Fund 68,420 - -
Total Investment fund in long position - -
Participation notes in long position (cost:

US$546,873)

CICC Financial Trading (Inner Mongolia Yili

Industrial Group Co Ltd A Shrs) P Note

08/18/2020 35,000 173,040 202
CICC Financial Trading Ltd (Kweichow Moutai Co

Ltd A Shrs (SSC)) P Note 01/04/2021 1,000 107,117 1.25
CICC Financial Trading Ltd (Kweichow Moutai Co

Ltd A Shrs) ELN 03/19/2018 2,300 246,369 2.87
CICC Financial Trading Ltd (Wuliangye Yibin Co

Ltd A Shrs) ELN 12/17/2018 18,700 229,412 267
Total Participation notes in long position 755,938 8.81
Total investments in long position (cost:

US$8,325,576) 8,792,378 102.50
Cash and cash equivalents 97,482 1.14
Other net liabilities (311,847) (3.64)
Total net assets B,577.913 100.00
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2016 12 31
JA-VP
2016 12 31
2016

7,256,852 6(e),9 6,492,044 709,905,011

6,747 737,784

3 114,660 12,538,071

6(d) 298,490 32,639,882
e 6,911,941  ___ 755,820,748

3 238,270 26,054,825

6(a) 8,800 962,280

6(c) 5,000 546,750

5 1,949 213,123

31,911 3,489,468
I 285,930 ____. 31,266,446

6,626,011 724,554,303

7 12,807
517.37 56,574
2017 4 20
33 34 39
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JA-VP
2016 12 31
2016
9,588 205,037 22,420,796
2,270 248,225
I 207,307 ____. 22,669,020
6(a) (116,755) (12,767,159)
6(b)
6(c) (60,000) (6,561,000)
6(d) (99,491) (10,879,341)
(72,278) (7,903,599)
(30,002) (3,280,719)
6(d) (1,003) (109, 678)
(3,497) (382,397)
(31,114) (3,402,316)
_______ (414,140) ____(45,286,209)
(206,833) (22,617,189)
369,864 40,444,628
(551,746) (60,333,425)
5,621 614,656
_______ (176,261) ____(19,274,140)
(383,094) (41,891,329)

34 39
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2016 12 31
2016
369,864 40,444,628
(551,746) (60,333,425)
5,621 614,656
(206, 833) (22,617,189)
(383,094) (41,891,329)
(1,245,534) (136,199,143)
(1,245,534) (136,199,143)
(1,628,628) (178,090,472)
8,254,639 902,644,775
6,626,011 724,554,303
34 39
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2016 12 31
2016
234,751 25,670,022
2,270 248,225
21,032,649 2,299,920,168
(19,783,657)  (2,163,342,893)
(9,588) (1,048,448)
1,949 213,123
(409,652) (44,795,446)
———— 1,068,722 116,864,751
(1,245,534) (136,199,143)
oo (,245,534) (136,199,143)
(176,812) (19,334,392)
475,302 51,974,274
298,490 32,639,882
34 39
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JA VP
2016 12 31
2000
21
2000 30
2016 12 31
JA VP
JA VP
JA VP
2000 17 2002
2003 11 27 JA VP 2004
2012 10 31
JA VP
2016 12 31
2016
289,722,132
114,374,767
JA VP 6,626,011

410,722,910
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open tax year open
tax year
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26
QFIIs
QFI1 QFIIs 2014 11 17
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2014 11 14
2014 11 14 MoF SAT

CSRC QFI1  RQFII

QFIls  ROFlIs
2014 11 17

2014 11 17 QFllIs RQFIIs
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2014 11 17
2014 11 17
2015 2014 11 17
2015 30

QFII/RQFII
2015 30
2014 11 17

10 10
10 SAT
SAT
SAT
2016 12 31
1.6

116,755 2016 12 31 8,800
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10,000,000 0.32
40,000,000 0.25
0.20
( ) 3,000
5,000
60,000 2016 12 31
5,000
9,845
HSBC
HSBC HSBC
2016 264,344 0.65 769 0.29
HSBC HSBC
2016 12 31
2016
298,490
57
(1,003)
2016 12 31
68,420

2,216
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2016 12 31

2016
5,935,315 62,775 5,998,090
96,948 96,948
397,006 397,006
6,032,263 397,006 62,775 6,492,044

34 39
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2016

(15.71)
(10.38)
(26.09)

12 31 517.37

5.70

5.70

2016 12 31
13,163
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Valug Partnors indolligent Funds
+i-VP China New Canfury Fund
Financlal statermands for the year ended 37 Decembar 2018

STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

Note 2016
uss
Assets
Investment in securitles, at fair value (cost: US$7,256,852) 6(e), 9 6,492,044
Dividends receivable 6,747
Amounts due from brokers 3 114,660
Cash and cash equivalents 6(d) 298,490
Total assets 6,911,941
Liabilities
Amounts dus to brokers 3 238,270
Investment management fees payable 6{a) 8,800
Trustee feas payable B(c) 5,000
Tax provision 5 1,949
Accrued expenses and other payables 31,911
Total liabilities . 255,830
Net assets 5.526'01 1
Mumber of units in issue 7 12,807
Net asset value per unit 517.37

Approved and authorised for issue by the Manager and the Trustee on 20 April 2017.

Signed by:
Value Partners Limitgsh, Manager Bank of Bermuda (Cayman) Lim Trustee

.....

The notes on pages 12 to 33 and the investment schedule on pages
of these financial statements.
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Valve Partners infeligent Funds
- JA-VP Chirna New Cantury Fund
Fingncial statements for the year ended 31 Decembar 2016

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Note
Dividend income (net of withholding tax of US$9,588)
Other income
Investment management fees 6(a)
Performance fees 6(b)
Trustee fees 6(c)
Transaction fees 6(d)
Professional fees
Auditors' remuneration
Bank charges 6(d)
Annual fees
Other operating expenses
Net investment loss

Met realised gain on investments
Met change in unrealised gainfloss on investments
Net foreign exchange gain

MNet realised gain and change in unrealised gain/loss on
investments and foreign currencies

Net decrease in net assets resulting from operations

2016
USS

205,037
2,270

207,307

(116,755)

(60,000)
(99,491)
(72,278)
(30,002)

(1,003)

(3,497)
(31,114)

(414,140)

(206,833)

369,864
(551,746)
5,621

(176,261)

(383,094)

The notes on pages 12 to 33 and the investment schedule on pages 34 to 39 form part

of these financial statements.
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Value Pariners Inteligent Funds

= JA-VP China New Cantury Fund
Financial staterments for the year ended 37 Decambar 2016

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

2018

Uss
Net realised gain on investments 369,864
Net change in unrealised gainfloss on investments (551,746)
Net foreign exchange gain 5,621
Net investment loss (208,833)
Net decrease in net assets resulting from operations (383,004)
Units issued -
Units redeemed (1,245 534)
MNet decrease in net assets resulting from capital transactions {1,245,534)
Net decrease in net assets (1,628,628)
Net asset
Beginning of year 8,254,639
End of year 6,626,011

The notes on pages 12 to 33 and the investment schedule on pages 34 to 39 form part
of these financial statements.

10
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Value Partnars Infeligent Funds
= JA-VP China New Cantury Fund
Financlal stelements for the year ended 31 December 2016

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

20186
uss
Operating activities
Dividends received 234,751
Other income received 2,270
Proceeds from sale of investments 21,032,649
Payments on purchase of investments {19,783,657)
Tax paid (9.588)
Tax refunded 1,948
Operating expenses paid (409,652)
Net cash flows generated from operating activities 1,068,722
Financing activities
Proceeds from issue of units -
Payments on redemption of units (1,245,534)
Net cash flows used in financing activities (1,245,534)
Met decrease in cash and cash equivalents {176,812}
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 475,302
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 288,480

The notes on pages 12 to 33 and the investment schedule on pages 34 to 39 form part

of these financial statements.

11
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Value Partners irfeligent Funds

= JA-VP China New Century Fund
Firancial statements for the year ended 31 Decomber 2016

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL

Value Partners Intelligent Funds (the “Trust™) is an open-ended umbrella unit trust
established under the laws of the Cayman Islands pursuant to a Trust Deed dated
21 June 2000 (the "Trust Deed”), as amended. The Trust was registered under the
Mutual Funds Law of the Cayman Islands on 30 June 2000.

The Trust is able to issue units in various sub-funds and as at 31 December 2016, the
China Convergence Fund, JA-VP China New Century Fund, Chinese Mainland Focus
Fund and JA-VP Chugokutairiku Focus Fund have been launched. The China
Convergence Fund, JA-VP China New Century Fund and Chinese Mainland Focus Fund
commenced operations on 17 July 2000, 7 March 2002 and 27 MNovember 2003
respectively. The JA-VP Chugokutairiku Focus Fund commenced operations on
2 September 2004 and was terminated on 31 October 2012.

Each separate sub-fund may be represented in whole or in part by a separate portfolio
and be maintained with separate accounting records. However, notwithstanding the
operation of separate sub-funds and/or portfolios, the Trust may be treated as one entity.
Thus all of the assets of the Trust may be available to meet all of the liabilities of the
Trust, regardless of the separate sub-fund or portfolio to which such assets or liabilities
are attributable. In practice, cross-unit liability will usually only arise where any sub-fund
becomes insolvent or exhausts its assets and is unable to meet all of its liabilities. In this
case, all of the assets of the Trust attributable to the other sub-funds may be applied to
cover the liabilities of the insolvent sub-fund.

These financial statements have been prepared for the Value Partners Intelligent Funds
- JA-VP China New Century Fund (the "Sub-fund”). The financial statements of China
Convergence Fund and Chinese Mainland Focus Fund have been prepared individually
and consequently are not included in these financial statements.

As at 31 December 2016, the combined net assets of the Trust are as follows:

Combined

MName of sub-funds net asseis
2018

US$

China Convergence Fund 289,722 132
Chinese Mainland Focus Fund 114,374,767
JA-VP China New Century Fund 6,626,011
Value Partners Intelligent Funds 410,722,910

12
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Value Partnors [nteligent Funds

- JA-VP China New Cenlury Fund
Financial statements for the year ended 37 Decambear 2016

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1 GENERAL (Continued)

The investment activities of the Sub-fund are managed by Value Partners Limited (the
“Manager”) and the administration of the Sub-fund is handled by Bank of Bermuda
{Cayman) Limited (the "Administrator”) which has delegated its role to HSBC Institutional
Trust Services (Asia) Limited.

The objective of the Sub-fund is to provide unitholders with medium to long-term capital
appreciation by investing in a diversified porffolio of enterprises which are either
(i) owned by private sector interests in the Greater China Region; or (i) considered by
the Manager to have the majority of their assets situated in, or the majority of their
income derived from operations in the Greater China Region.

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in conformity with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles ("US GAAP") and the relevant provisions of the
Trust Deed, as amended. The Sub-fund is considered an investment company under
US GAAP and follows the accounting and reporting guidance applicable to investment
companies in Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB) Accounting Standards
Codification ("ASC") 946, Financial Services - Investment Companies ("ASC 5487). The
significant accounting policies adopted by the Sub-fund are as follows:

(a)  Basis of preparation

The measurement currency of the financial statements is United States dollars ("USD")
reflecting the fact that most of the transactions are denominated in USD as well as Hong
Kong dollars ("HKD") which is pegged to USD. Units of the Sub-fund are issued in USD
and distributions to investors are also made in USD.

The financial statements are presented in USD.

fb)  Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with US GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the

financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expenses during the year.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

13
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Valve Partners inteligent Funds
- JA-VP Chirrg New Cantury Fund
Financial statements for the year ended 31 Decambor 2016

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(c)  Foreign currency translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign currency exchange rate
ruling at the date of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated to USD at the foreign currency closing exchange rate
ruling at the date of the statement of assets and liabilities. Foreign currency exchange
differences relating to investments are included in gains and losses on investments. All
other foreign currency exchange differences relating to monetary items, including cash
and cash equivalents are presented as net foreign exchange gain or loss in the
statement of operations. Foreign cumrency exchange differences arising on realised
gains and losses on disposals or settlements of investments are recognised in the
statement of operations.

{d) Investments

(i) Classification
Investments consist of equity securities, investment funds and participation notes. The
Sub-fund classifies all its investments into trading securities, which are bought and held
principally for the purpose of selling them in the near term.

(i) Recognition

The Sub-fund recognises investments on the date it becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

A regular way purchase of financial assets is recognised using trade date accounting.
From this date any gains and losses arising from changes in fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities are recorded.

Financial liabilities are not recognised unless one of the parties has performed their
obligations under the contract.

14
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Valuve Fartners Inteligent Funds
- JA-VP Ching New Cantury Fund
Financial staterments for the year ended 31 December 2016

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Investments (Continued)
Fair value measurement principles

“Fair value" is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in
the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the Sub-fund
has access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk.

When available, the Sub-fund measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted
price in an active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as “active” if
transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to
provide pricing information on an ongoing basis. The Sub-fund measures instruments
qguoted in an active market at a last transacted price, because this price provides a
reasonable approximation of the exit price.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Sub-fund uses wvaluation
technigues that maximise the use of relevant cbservable inputs and minimise the use of
unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technigue incorporates all of the factors that
market participants would take into account in pricing a transaction.

Investments in other unlisted investment funds are recorded at the net asset value per
share as reported by the administrators of such funds.

Impaiment

Financial assets that are stated at cost or amortised cost are reviewed at the date of
each statement of assets and liabilities to determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. If any such indication exists, an impaimrment loss is recognised in the
statement of operations as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss recognised on a financial
asset carried at amortised cost decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to

an event occurring after the write-down, the write-down is reversed through the
statement of operations.

Derecognition

The Sub-fund uses the weighted average method to determine realised gains and losses
on derecognition.

15
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Value Partners Inteligent Funds

= JA-VP China New Canfury Fund
Financial siatements for the year ended 31 Decamber 2016

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
{a) Interest income

Interest income is recognised in the statement of operations as it accrues, using the
original effective interest rate of the instrument calculated at the acquisition or origination
date. Interest income includes the amortisation of any discount or premium, transaction
costs or other differences between the initial carrying amount of an interest-bearing
instrument and its amount at maturity calculated on an effective interest rate basis,

(N Dividend income and expense

Dividend income relating to exchange-traded equity securities and dividend expense
relating to securities sold short are recognised in the statement of operations on the
ex-dividend date.

In some cases, the Sub-fund may choose to receive dividends in the form of additional
shares rather than cash. In such cases the Sub-fund recognises the dividend income for
the amount of the cash dividend alternative with the corresponding debit treated as an
additional investment.

(@) Expenses

All expenses, including investment management fees, performance fees and trustee
fees, are recognised in the statement of operations on an accrual basis.

{h)  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises current deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash, are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, and are held for the purpose of meeting
short-term cash commitments rather than for investment or other purposes.

()  Taxation

Under the current system of taxation in the Cayman Islands, the Sub-fund is exempt
from paying taxes on income, profits or capital gains. The Trust has received an
undertaking from the Governor in Cabinet of the Cayman Islands exempting it from tax
for a period of 50 years since inception of the Trust.

Dividend and interest income received by the Sub-fund may be subject to withholding tax
imposed in the country of origin. Investment income is recorded net of withholding tax

and is recognised in the statement of operations as incurred. Refer to note 5 for more
details.

16
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Value Partners Infeligant Funds
= JA-VP China New Cantury Fund
Financial statemenis for the year ended 31 Decawnber 2018

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties

For the purpose of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related to the
Sub-fund if they have the ability, directly or indirectly, to control or exercise significant

influence over the Sub-fund in making financial and operating decisions. Related parties
may be individuals or entities.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO BROKERS

2016

Uss

Sales awaiting settlement 114,660
Purchases awaiting settlement 238,270

In accordance with the Sub-fund's policy of trade date accounting for regular way sale
and purchase fransactions, sales/purchases awaiting settlement represent amounts
receivable/payable for securities sold/purchased, but not yet settled.

17
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Value Partners Irdaligant Funds

- JA-VP China New Cantury Fund
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS

The Sub-fund maintains positions in a variety of derivative and non-derivative financial
instruments as dictated by its investment management strategy. The Sub-fund's
investment schedule comprises listed equity securities, an investment in a close-ended
fund and participation notes.

The Sub-fund's investing activities expose it to various types of risk that are associated
with the financial instruments and markets in which it invests. The most important types
of financial risk to which the Sub-fund is exposed to are market risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk.

Asset allocation is determined by the Manager who manages the distribution of the
assets to achieve the investment objective. Divergence from target asset allocations
and the composition of the portfolio is monitored by the Manager.

The nature and extent of the financial instruments outstanding at the date of the
statement of assets and liabilities and the risk management policies employed by the
Sub-fund are discussed below.

(a)  Market risk

Market risk embodies the potential for both losses and gains and includes cumrency risk,
interest rate risk and price risk,

The Sub-fund's strategy on the management of investment risk is driven by the
Sub-fund's investment objective. The investment objective of the Sub-fund is to provide
unitholders with medium to long-term capital appreciation (in USD terms). The
Sub-fund’s market risk is managed on a daily basis by the Manager in accordance with
policies and procedures in place. The Sub-fund’s overall market positions are monitored
on a timely basis by the Manager.

Details of the Sub-fund's investment portfolio as at the date of the statement of assets
and liabilities are disclosed in the investment schedule. All individual investments are
disclosed separately.

18
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Value Fartners inteligent Funds

= JA-VP China New Cantury Fund
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (Continued)
{a) Market risk {Continued)
(i) Currency risk

The Sub-fund may invest in financial instruments and enter into transactions
denominated in currencies other than its functional currency. Consequently, the
Sub-fund is exposed to risks that the exchange rate of its currency relative to other
foreign currencies may change in a manner that has an adverse effect on the value of
that portion of the Sub-fund's assets or liabilities denominated in currencies other than
the USD.

The Sub-fund is not subject to significant amounts of currency risk because most of the
assets and liabilities are denominated in HKD which is pegged to the USD.

The Sub-fund's total net exposure to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates as
at the date of the statement of assets and liabilities was as follows:

Net exposure
20186
uss

MNew Taiwan dollar 671,002
Japanese yen B4
Singapore dollar 209,206

880,272

As the HKD is pegged to the USD, the Sub-fund does not expect any significant
movements in the HKD/USD exchange rate.

(i) Interest rate risk
The majority of the Sub-fund's financial assets and liabilities are non-interest-bearing.
All interest-bearing financial assets mature or reprice in the short-term, no longer than
twelve months. As a result, the Sub-fund is subject to limited exposure to fair value
interest rate risk due to fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates. Any

excess cash and cash equivalents of the Sub-fund are invested in short-term
instruments.
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Vailue Parimers infelligent Funds

- JA-VP China New Canfury Fund
Financial staternenis for the year ended 31 December 2016

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)
(iiy  Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the value of the instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes
in market prices, whether caused by factors specific to an individual investment, its
issuer or all factors affecting all instruments traded in the market.

As the majority of the Sub-fund's financial instruments are caried at fair value with fair
value changes recognised in the statement of operations, all changes in market
conditions will direclly affect net assets resulting from operations and the financial
instruments' carrying amounts on the statement of assets and liabilities.

Price risk is mitigated by the Manager by constructing a diversified portfolio of
instruments traded on various markets. In addition, price risk may be hedged using
derivative financial instruments such as options or futures,

(b)  Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an
obligation or commitment that it has entered into with the Sub-fund. Credit risk generally
is higher when a non-exchange-traded financial instrument is involved, because the
counterparty is not backed by an exchange clearing house.

The Sub-fund's expasure to credit risk is monitored by the Manager on an ongoing basis.

Credit risk arising on transactions with brokers relates to transactions awaiting
settlement. Risk relating to unsettled transactions is considered small due to the short
settlement pericd involved.

The camying amounts of financial assets best represent the maximum credit risk
exposure on the statement of assets and liabilities.

As at 31 December 2016, there were no significant concentrations of credit risk to
counterparties except to the custodians and banks. Substantially all the financial
instruments are cleared through and held in custody primarily by one major international
institution. The Sub-fund is subject to credit risk to the extent that this institution may be
unable to fulfil its obligations either to return the Sub-fund's securities or repay amounts
owed. The Sub-fund does not anticipate any losses as a result of this concentration.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (Continued)
(c)  Liquidity risk

The Sub-fund's Explanatory Memorandum provides for the daily creation and
cancellation of units and it is therefore exposed to the liquidity risk of meeting unitholder
redemptions at any time.

The Sub-fund invested in a close-ended fund which is not traded in an organised public
market. The Sub-fund also invested in other equities which are suspended from trading
as at year end. These investments generally may be illiquid. As a result, the Sub-fund
may not be able to liquidate these investments quickly at an amount close to its fair
value in order to meet its liquidity requirements, or to respond to specific events such as
deterioration in the creditworthiness of any particular issuer.

The Sub-fund predominantly invested in listed equity securities which are considered to
be readily realisable as they are all listed on major stock exchanges.

5 TAXATION

(a)  There are no taxes on income or gains in the Cayman Islands as the Trust has received
an undertaking from the Governor in Cabinet of the Cayman Islands exempting it from all
local income, profits and capital gains taxes unfil 2050. Accordingly, no provision for
income taxes is included in these financial statements.

(b)  The Sub-fund recognises the tax benefits of uncertain tax positions only where the
position is more likely than not {i.e. greater than 50 percent) to be sustained assuming
examination by a taxing authority based on the technical merits of the position. In
evaluating whether a tax position has met the recognition threshold, the Sub-fund must
presume that the position will be examined by the appropriate taxing authority that has
full knowledge of all relevant information. A tax position that meets the more likely than
not recognition threshold is measured to determine the amount of benefit to recognise in
the Sub-fund's financial statements. Income tax and related interest and penalties would
be recognised by the Sub-fund as tax expense in the statement of operations if the tax
positions were deemed to not meet the more likely than not thresheld.

The Sub-fund analyses all open tax years for all major taxing jurisdictions. Open tax
years are those that are open for exam by taxing authorities, as defined by the Statute of
Limitations in each jurisdiction. The Sub-fund identifies its major tax jurisdictions as the
Cayman Islands and foreign jurisdictions where the Sub-fund makes significant
investments. The Sub-fund has no examinations by taxing authorities in progress.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5  TAXATION (Continued)
{b) (Continued)

Management has analysed the Sub-fund's tax positions, and has concluded that no
liability for unrecognised tax benefits should be recorded related to uncertain tax
positions. Further, management is not aware of any tax positions for which it is
reasonably possible that the total amounts of unrecognised tax benefits will significantly
change in the next twelve months.

(c) No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the financial statements as
the Trust is exempt from taxation under section 26A(1A) of the Hong Kong Inland
Revenue Ordinance.

(d}  In preparing these financial statements, the Manager has made certain assumptions and
used various estimates conceming the tax exposure which is dependent on what might
happen in the future. The resulting accounting estimates may not equal the related
actual results.

The Sub-fund invests in derivative instruments linked to "A" shares, issued by one or
more Qualified Foreign Institutional Investors ("QFlIs™) or their affiliates as well as "A’
shares of companies listed in the PRC, via the Managers QFIl qucta. Prior to 17
November 2014, a 10% tax was withheld by the QFlis on all PRC sourced dividends and
realised capital gains.

Notice issued on 14 November 2014

On 14 November 2014, the Ministry of Finance of the PRC (the "MoF"), the State
Administration of Taxation of the PRC ("SAT") and the China Securities Regulatory
Commission (the "CSRC") jointly issued the “Motice on temporary exemption of
Corporate Income Tax on capital gains derived from the transfer of equity investment
assets such as PRC domestic stocks by QFIl and RQFII" (the “Notice™).

According to the Notice, amongst other things:

(il QFlls and RQFIIs, which do not have an establishment or place of business in the
PRC or have an establishment or place in the PRC but the income so derived in
the PRC is not effectively connected with such establishment, will be temporarily
exempt from corporate income tax on gains derived from the transfer of PRC equity
investment assets (including China "A” shares) effective from 17 November 2014,

(il PRC corporate income tax will be imposed on gains by QFlls and RQFIlls from

transfer of equity investment assets (including China “A" shares) realised prior to
17 November 2014 in accordance with laws.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

TAXATION (Continued)
{Continued)
Notice issued on 14 November 2014 (Continued)

As a result of the issue of the Notice, the Manager has decided on the following changes
to the tax provisioning policy of the Sub-fund:

{iy The Sub-fund has ceased to provide PRC withholding income tax for realised gains
on derivative instruments linked to A" shares on or after 17 November 2014,

(i) Mo PRC withholding income tax provision is made for unrealised gains for China
A-shares. The tax provision made in relation to unrealised gains on the Sub-fund's
investments in derivatives on China equities has been released on 17 November
2014.

In June 2015, the Third Branch of Shanghai Municipal Office of the State Administration
of Taxation issued a notice and a tax filing deadline of 30 September 2015 for all
QFIRQFIl to declare and report the tax-related matters in relation to capital gains
realised from the disposal of PRC equity investments prior to 17 November 2014. The
Manager engaged a tax advisor to file the tax retumn and required documents by 30
September 2015. Mo payment was made by the Sub-fund as there were no gross
realised gains derived from the disposal of “A" shares prior to 17 November 2014,

The Sub-fund also directly invests in *B" shares of companies listed in the PRC for
subscription by foreign investors and may be subject to PRC withholding tax of 10% on
dividend income. A 10% withholding tax may also be payable on the capital gains
derived from the sale of "B" shares. Under current PRC tax laws, gains derived from the
transfer of shares of PRC companies by non-residents should be subject to a
withholding tax of 10%, unless exempt under relevant tax treaties. The SAT has
remained silent on the collection of withholding tax for capital gains and until further
clarification is issued by the SAT, the Manager considers that there is significant
uncertainty in respect of whether the Sub-fund has any liability and the extent of such
liability with respect to tax on capital gains derived from the sale of PRC “B" shares. In
making this assessment, the Manager has considered (i) the current position of the SAT,
(i) the absence of a withholding mechanism of the relevant tax and (jii) current market
practice. Accordingly, as at 31 December 2016, the Sub-fund had not made any
provision for the tax on capital gains on "B" shares based on the above judgments made
by the Manager.

The Manager will continually reassess the withholding income tax provisioning approach
on an on-going basis taking into account any recent development in the market.

The provision for taxation in the statement of assets and liabilities represents PRC
withholding tax provision as at year end relating to tax refunded by broker during the

year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

6 RELATED PARTIES

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Sub-fund entered into the following material related parly transactions
for the year. All such transactions were entered into in the ordinary course of business
and on normal commercial terms.

(a) Investment management fees

The Manager, an investment management company incorporated in British Virgin
Islands, has implemented the investment strategy as specified in the Explanatory
Memorandum. Under the Investment Management Agreement, the Manager receives a
management fee monthly in arrears at an annual rate of 1.6% of the net assets on each
valuation day as defined in the Explanatory Memorandum. An investment management
fee of US$116,755 was charged to the statement of operations during the year.
Included in liabilities as at 31 December 2016 is investment management fees payable
of US$8,800.

(b)  Performance fees

Under the Investment Management Agreement, the Manager is also entitled to a
performance fee, calculated at a high-on-high basis, if the net asset value per unit as at
the last valuation day of a calendar quarter (prior to the accrual of any performance fee
for that calendar quarter) exceeds the higher of:

(i) the net asset value per unit as at the close of business on the last valuation day in
the last calendar guarter in respect of which a performance fee was paid to the
Manager in respect of the Sub-fund, after payment of such performance fee; and

(i) the initial offer price at which the units were first offered.

The rate of performance fees payable is 15% and is calculated by multiplying this fee
rate by the product of the excess of the net asset value per unit (calculated as stated
above) and the average of the number of units in issue immediately after each valuation
day in the relevant calendar quarter. No performance fee was charged to the statement
of operations during the year. There is no performance fees payable included in
liabilities as at 31 December 20186.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

6 RELATED PARTIES (Continued)
{'c) Trustee fees

The Bank of Bermuda (Cayman) Limited, the Trustee of the Sub-fund, is entitied to
trustee fees which are determined based on the net asset value of the Sub-fund as

below:

Trustee fee
per annum
shown as %
of net asset
value

Net assef value
First US$10 million 0.32%
Next US$40 million 0.25%
Thereafter 0.20%

Under the terms of the Trust Deed (as amended), the Trustee is also entitled to a fixed
annual fee of US$3,000.

The trustee fees are subject to a monthly minimum of US$5,000.

Trustee fees of US$HE60,000 were charged to the statement of operations during the year.
Included in liabilities as at 31 December 2016 is trustee fees payable of US$5,000.

(d)  Transactions/balances with the group company of the Trustee

During the year, the Custodian of the Sub-fund, HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia)
Limited, which is a group company of the Trustee of the Sub-fund, charged transaction
fees of US$9,845 for handling each purchase or sale of investments.

During the year, the Sub-fund utilised the services of The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited ("HSBC"), which is a group company of the Trustee of the
Sub-fund, in its purchase and sale of investments. Details of such transactions executed
and fees paid are set out below:

Value of transactions % of total value of Commission AVEFHQE
executed through fransactions of and other fees = commission
HSBC the Sub-fund paid fo HSBC rate
uss uss
Year 2016 264,344 0.65% 769 0.29%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

RELATED PARTIES (Continued)
Transactions/balances with the group company of the Trustee (Continued)

The Sub-fund maintains bank accounts with HSBC. The Sub-fund may also maintain
cash deposits which were held as collateral for transactions involving borrowed
securities with HSBC during the year. No cash deposits were held as collateral as at 31
December 2016. Other information relating to the bank accounts and bormowed
securities is set out below:

2016
Uss
Bank accounts
Bank balance 298,490
Interest income 57
Bank charges (1,003)

Investment in a fund managed by a related party of the Manager

As at 31 December 2016, the Sub-fund held 68,420 units in Value Partners Strategic
Equity Fund, a fund managed by a related party of the Manager, with fair value of
USSNIl. A cash distribution of US$2,216 was received from Value Partners Strategic
Equity Fund as its underlying assets were liquidated during the year.

UNITS IN ISSUE
Number of
units
2016
As at 1 January 15,189
Redemption of units (2,382)
Asg at 31 December 12,807

The rights attaching to each unit are as follows:

The holders of the units have the right to receive notice of, attend and vote at meetings
of the Sub-fund. The holder of each such unit has the right to one vote for each such
unit registered in his name. The holders are entitled to receive all dividends declared
and paid by the Sub-fund. Upon winding up, the holders are entitled to a return of capital
based on the net assets value per unit of the Sub-fund.

All distributable profits of the Sub-fund will be accumulated and no distribution of income
will be made from the Sub-fund, unless otherwise determined by the Manager.

26

141/290



EDINETO OO
00000000 000000000(EL4980)
OOoo0o0o00000000000on

Value Partners Intafigent Funds

= JA-VP China New Cantury Fund
Financial stalements for the year anded 31 December 2016

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

SOFT COMMISSION ARRANGEMENTS

The Manager andfor any company associated with it and its delegates may enter into
soft dollars/commission sharing arrangements with brokers through which brokerage
transactions are entered on behalf of clients under management. The Manager may
receive, and are entitled to retain, research products and services (known as soft dollar
benefits) which are of demonstrable benefit to the Sub-fund (as may be permitted under
applicable rules and regulations) from brokers and other persons through whom
investment transactions are carried out (the “brokers”). Soft dollars may be received
from them provided that the quality of transaction execution is consistent with best
execution standards and brokerage rates are not in excess of the customary full-service

brokerage rates.

Such soft dollar benefits may include research and advisory services; economic and
political analysis; porifclio analysis, including valuation and performance measurement;
market analysis, data and quotation services and software incidental fo the above goods
and services; clearing and custodian services and investment related publications. For
the avoidance of doubt, soft dollar benefits do not include travel, accommodation,
entertainment, general administrative goods and services, general office equipment or
premises, membership fees, employee salaries or direct money payments.

The Manager considers many judgemental factors deemed relevant in determining
whether a broker provides best execution. In general, investment orders are allocated to
brokers based on the range and overall quality of services offered by the broker. The
core factors in determining the quality of services are the execution performance and
capability of the broker. Other factors, such as the quality and quantity of research and
investment ideas offered, access to potential investee companies and commission rate
charges, would also be taken into consideration. Soft dollar benefits received from
brokers should not be a determinant factor on allocating orders among brokers. The
Manager has implemented policies and procedures to ensure that transactions executed
with brokers pursuant to a soft dollar commission sharing arrangement are conducted in
the best execution standard. Soft dollars benefits received by the Manager are used to
facilitate in the Manager's investment management process, such benefits assist the
Manager in fulfilling its overall duty to clients and may be used in servicing any or all of
the Manager's client accounts over which the Manager exercises investment discretion.
The Manager does not usually attempt to allocate/attribute the soft dollar benefits to
individual client account, as goods and services obtained may be beneficial to all clients
in general, including those client accounts that do not generate credit to acguire the soft
dollar benefits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

9 FAIR VALUE

The Sub-fund's investments are carried at fair value on the statement of assets and
liabilities. The camying amounts of other financial assets and liabilities approximate fair
value due to the immediate or short-term nature of these financial instruments.

The Sub-fund utilises various methods to measure the fair value of its investments on a
recurring basis.  Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards
Codification Topic 820 (FASB ASC Topic 820) defines fair value, establishes a
consistent framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosure requirements
about fair value measurements. FASB ASC Topic 820, among other things, requires the
Sub-fund to maximise the use of observable inputs and minimise the use of
unobservable input when measuring fair value.

(a) Fair value hierarchy

FASB ASC Topic 820 specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on whether
the inputs to those valuation techniques are observable or unobservable. The Sub-fund
utilises valuation techniques that maximise the use of observable inputs and minimise
the use of unobservable inputs to the extent possible. The Sub-fund determines fair
value based on assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or
liability in the principal or most advantageous market. When considering market
participant assumptions in fair value measurements, the following fair value hierarchy
distinguishes between observable and unobservable inputs, which are categorised in
one of the following levels:

-  Level 1: Inputs that are quoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical instruments.

—  Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are cbservable
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). This category
includes instruments valued using: gquoted market prices in active markets for
similar instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that
are considered less than active; or other valuation techniques in which all
significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from market data.

- Level 3: Inputs that are unobservable. This category includes all instruments for
which the valuation technique includes inputs not based on observable data and
the unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the instrument's valuation.
This category includes instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for
similar instruments but for which significant unobservable adjustments or
assumptions are required to reflect differences between the instruments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

9 FAIR VALUE (Continued)
(b) Determination of fair value

The Sub-fund measures fair value using the procedures set out below for the investment
schedule measured at fair value,

When available and for quoted investments, the Sub-fund generally uses quoted market
prices in active markets to determine fair value, and classifies such items in Level 1.

In some cases where a market price is available and relevant to measure the fair value
of a particular investment, the Sub-fund will calculate the fair value of such investment by
reference to such market price, in which case the items are classified in Level 2.

If quoted market prices are not available, fair value is based upon internally developed
valuation technigues that use, where possible, current market-based or independently
sourced market parameters, such as interest rates, currency rates, option volatilities, etc.
Items valued using such internally generated valuation technigques are classified
according to the lowest level input or value driver that is significant to the valuation.
Thus, an item may be classified in Level 3 even though there may be some significant
inputs that are readily observable, including market comparables of listed companies.

The Sub-fund follows the Intemational Private Equity and Venture Capital Valuation

Guidelines for valuations in fair value hierarchy, in particular for Level 3, in which one or
more significant inputs or significant value drivers are unobservable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

9 FAIR VALUE (Continued)
(c) ftems measured at fair value on a recurring basis
The following table presents for each of the fair value hierarchy levels the Sub-fund's

investment schedule that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis as at
31 December 2016.

2016

With

Quoted Quoted significant

markef observable unobservable

price inputs inputs
(Level 1) fLevel 2) {Level 3) Tolal
Uss uss uss UsSs

Assets

Equity securities” 5,935,315 - 62,775 5,998,090
Investment fund 96,948 - - 96,948
Participation notes - 397,006 - 387,006
Total 6,032,263 397,008 62,775 6,492,044

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3
of the fair value hierarchy during the year.

" Please refer to investment schedule on pages 34 to 39 for porifolio holdings by
country and industry.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

FAIR VALUE (Continued)
ltems measured at fair value on a recurring basis (Continued)

The following table presents the changes in the Level 3 fair value category for the year
ended 31 December 2018. The Sub-fund classifies financial instruments in Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy when there is reliance on at least one significant unobservable
input to the valuation model. In addition to these unobservable inputs, the valuation
modeils for Level 3 financial instruments typically also rely on a number of inputs that are
readily observable either directly or indirectly. Thus, the gains and losses presented
below include changes in the fair value related to both observable and unobservable

inputs.

20186

Uss

Opening balance as at 1 January 347,031

Total gains or losses for the period

Net change in unrealised gain/loss on investments (151,000)
Met realised gain on sale of investments 111,930
Purchases, issues, sales and settlement (245,186)
Closing balance as at 31 December 62,775
Net unrealised losses* (49,500)

* Represents the amount of fotal net unrealised losses for the year, included in
eamings, atiributable to the change in fair value relating to portfolio investments
classified as Level 3 that are still held as at 31 December 2016.

Transfers into/out of Level 3 are recognised based on the fair value at the end of the
reporting period.

The investments classified as Level 3 were valued based on last transacted price prior to
the date of suspension of the shares from the respective exchange in respect of the
equity securities and net asset value in respect of the investment fund. The

uncbservable inputs are not developed by the Manager in arriving at the fair value hence
no quantitative analysis is presented.
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10

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Operating performance per unit:
2016
Uss
Net asset value per unit as at 1 January 543.46
Income from investment operations:
MNet investment loss (15.71)
Net realised and change in unrealised gainfloss
on investments (10.38)
Total loss from investment operations (26.09)
Net asset value per unit as at 31 December _51 7.37
Total return:
Loss before performance fee (4.80)%
Performance fee -
Loss after performance fee (4.80)%
Ratio of net investment loss to average net assets:
Met investment loss before performance fee (2.85)%
Performance fee -
Net investment loss after performance fee (2.85)%
Ratio of expenses to average net assets:
Expenses before performance fee 5.70%
Performance fee -
Total expenses 5.70%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (Continued)

Net loss from investment operations per unit is calculated based on 13,163 units, which
represent the average number of units outstanding of the Sub-fund for the year ended
31 December 2016.

Total return is calculated by comparing the ending NAV per unit to the beginning NAV
per unit. An individual investor's return may vary from these based on the timing of
capital transactions.

Expense ratio is calculated taken as a whole. An individual investor's ratios may vary
from these ratios based on the timing of capital transactions.

INDEMNIFICATION

In the normal course of business, the Sub-fund enters into contracts that contain a
variety of representations which provide general indemnifications. The Sub-fund's
maximum exposure under these agreements is unknown as this would involve future
claims that may be against the Sub-fund that have not yet occurred. However, based on
experience, the Sub-fund expects the risk of loss to be remote.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
In preparing these financial statements, management has evaluated and disclosed all

material subsequent events up to 20 April 2017, the date that the financial statements
were issued.
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320,899.10 | 35,090,317

7,956,126.58 (870,002,442
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2018
14,623,428 11,854,704
18,893,318 | 15,302,777
203,850,586 165,254,574

2013 12 31 11,854,704
2014 12 31 11,854,704
2015 12 31 11,854,704
2016 12 31 11,854,704
2017 12 31 11,854,704
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2017 12 31
2017 2016

12 4,609,012 64,249,627 8,278,253 115,398,847
13 16,177,323 225,511,883 10,747,026 149,813,542

20 328,911 4,585,019
14 94,309,200 1,314,670,248 126,276,554 1,760,295,163
15 707,276,501 9,859,434,424 411,660,180 5,738,542,909
11,180,051 155,849,911 2,603,058 36,286,629
833,880,998  11,624,301,112 559,565,071 7,800,337,090
27.4 58,118,563 810,172,768 241,729,924 3,369,715,141
15 53,543,485 746,396,181 163,070 2,273,196
16 13,668,065 190,532,826
17 336,002,287 4,683,871,881 28,735,641 400,574,836
23,183,842 323,182,757 19,178,636 267,350,186
31,737,272 442,417,572 173,144,567 2,413,635,264
18 862,636,875  12,025,158,038 1,269,032,871  17,690,318,222
1,365,222,324  19,031,199,197 1,745,652,774  24,334,399,670
27.4 29,770,403 414,999,418 26,055,029 363,207,104
633,504,203 8,831,048,590 51,432,319 716,966,527
23 230,000,000 3,206,200,000 300,000,000 4,182,000,000
21 9,075,671 126,514,854 7,563,508 105,435,302
17,751,216 247,451,951 10,316,036 143,805,542
12,710,784 177,188,329 1,465,784 20,433,029
932,812,277 13,003,403,141 396,832,676 5,531,847,503
432,410,047 6,027,796,055 1,348,820,098  18,802,552,166

44

157/290



EDINETOOOO
OO000D0000DO00DO0Oo(EL4980)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2017 12 31
2017 2016

27.4 153,081,227 2,133,952,304 747,269,712 10,416,939,785
27.4 59,578,666 830,526,604
17,666,606 246,272,488 108,333 1,510,162
20 565,834 7,887,726
170,747,833 2,380,224,792 807,522,545 11,256,864,277
1,095,543,212 15,271,872,375 1,100,862,624 15,346,024,979
19 53,767,992 749,525,808 53,767,992 749,525,808
7,722,104 107,646,130 5,302,263 73,913,546
1,034,053,116 14,414,700,437 1,041,792,369 14,522,585,624
1,095,543,212 15,271,872,375 1,100,862,624 15,346,024,979

44

158/290
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44

2017 12 31
2017 2016
5 718,247,665 10,012,372,450 570,761,159 7,956,410,556
(251,717,226) (3,508,938,130) (365,709,954) (5,097,996, 759)
466,530,439 6,503, 434,320 205,051,205 2,858,413,798
6 620,611,786 8,651,328,297 205,637,623 2,866,588, 465
... 1,087,142,225 15,154,762,617 410,688,828 . 5,725,002,262
7 (867,897,769) (12,098,494 ,900) (295,120,876) (4,113,985,011)
(22,561,785) (314,511,283) (22,761,270) (317,292,104)
8 (115,714,115) (1,613,054,763) (93,081,361) (1,297,554,172)
..... (1,006,173,669) ... .(14,026,060,946) . (410,963,507) .. (5,728,831,288)
146,079,590 2,036,349, 485 (11,430,594) (159,342, 480)
(1,847,297) (25,751,320)
14 (15,751,634) (219,577,778)
14 11,172,936 155,750,728
7,883,311 109,893,355 (13,261,572) (184,866,314)
9 149,384,203 2,082,415,790 (26,539,463) (369,960,114)
230,352,759 3,211,117,460 (26,814,142) (373,789,139)
10 (8,092,012) (112,802,647) 651,657 9,084,099
......... 222,260,747 ......83:098,314,813 . (26,162,485)  (364,705,041)
2,419,841 33,732,584 (868,358) (12,104,911)
11 2,419,841 33,732,584 (868, 358) (12,104,911)
224,680,588 3,132,047,397 (27,030,843) (376,809,951)

159/290
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2017 12 31

21 53,767,992 ... 749,525,808 . .6,170,621 . 86,018,457 1,367,954,854 .  19,069,290,665 .  1,427,893,467 .  19,904,834,930
(26,162, 485) (364,705,041) (26,162, 485) (364,705,041)
15.1 (868,358) _ (12,104,911) (868,358) (12,104,911)
................................................... (868,358), . (12,104,911) .. (26,162,485)  (364,705,041) . (27,030,843) . . (376,809,951)
23 (300,000,000)  (4,182,000,000)  (300,000,000)  (4,182,000,000)
7 89,167,919 1,243,000,791 89,167,919 1,243,000,791
7 (89,167,919) _ (1,243,000,791) (89,167,919) _ (1,243,000,791)
(300,000,000) _ (4,182,000,000) _ (300,000,000) _ (4,182,000,000)

2016 12 31
2017 53,767,992 ... 749,525,808 . .5,802,263 . 73,913,546 1,041,792,369 |  14,522,585,624  1,100,862,624 15,346,024,979
222,260,747 3,008,314,813 222,260,747 3,008,314,813
15.1 2,419,841 33,732,584 2,419,841 33,732,584
e e . 22819,840 33,732,584 ... 222,260,747, ... 3,008,314,813 ... 224,680,588 ... 3,132,047,397
23 (230,000,000)  (3,206,200,000)  (230,000,000)  (3,206,200,000)
7 48,773,080 679,896,735 48,773,080 679,896,735
7 (48,773,080) (679,896,735) (48,773,080) (679,896,735)
(230,000,000) _ (3,206,200,000) _ (230,000,000) _ (3,206,200,000)
2017 12 31 53,767,992 749,525,808 7,722,104 107,646,130 _ 1,034,053,116 _ 14,414,700,437 _ 1,095,543,212 _ 15,271,872,375

44
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2017 12 31
2017 2016

24 47,328,503 659,759,332 40,556,168 565,352,982
12,388,690 172,698,339 7,200,128 100,369,784
2,258,243 31,479,907 (1,019,035) (14,205, 348)
61,975,436 863,937,578 46,737,261 651,517,418

14 33,885,696 472,366,602
(15,181,023) (211,623,461) (4,328,873) (60,344, 490)

1,290 17,983
(345,313,813)  (4,813,674,553) (15,232,973) (212,347,644)
152,008,284 2,118,995,479 542,413,583 7,561,245,347
6,228,134 86,820,188 15,070,976 210,089,405
(168,371,432)  (2,347,097,762) 537,922,713 7,498,642,619
(300,000,000)  (4,182,000,000) (410,000,000)  (5,715,400,000)
(300,000,000)  (4,182,000,000) (410,000,000)  (5,715,400,000)
(406,395,996)  (5,665,160,184) 174,659,974 2,434,760,038
1,269,032,871  17,690,318,222 1,094,372,897  15,255,558,184
862,636,875  12,025,158,038 1,269,032,871  17,690,318,222

44

161/290



2.1

HKFRSs

2017 12 31
3140
41
HK$
HKICPA
HKFRSs
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2017
HKFRS HKFRS
HKAS 39 HKFRS
HKAS
39
2018
HKFRS HKFRS
HKFRS
2018 1 1
HKFRS 15
HKAS 18 HKAS 11
2018
HKFRS 16
commitment HKFRS 16
2019
HKFRS 16

HKFRSs HK IFRIC
HKFRSs HK 1FRIC

2.2

163/290



2.3

2.4

HKAS 28

50
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2.6

2.7
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2.9

CGU
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HKAS 28

HKAS 28
12

12

12
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2.11

2.12

2.13
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2.15

2.16
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2.19

2.20

2.21

3.1

3.2
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2017 12 31 2016 12 31
12 31
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
+/-5 +/-5 +/-290,000 +/-940,000

+/-5 +/-5 +/-3,755,000 +/-10,789,000
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2017 12 31
50

120,000
12 31

MSCI

2016
2016 12

2017

+/-10

EDINETOOOO
OO000D0000DO00DO0Oo(EL4980)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

15 17 18 21

50 2016
92,000 2017
31
MSCI
MSCI
2016 2017 2016
+/-10 +/-31,689,000 +/-31,171,000

176/290



A+

BBB+
BBB

2017 12 31
2016
26,055,029

15

2017

7,288,178
200,281,711
55,676,210
131,589,952
501,086,202
9,975
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2016

7,276,557
609,633,099
279,560,796
348,955,779
198,026,745

24,307

895,932,228

1,443,477,283

17

2017 12 31
862,636,875

2,068,687
153,081,227

177/290

2016 1,269,032,871

1,702,856

29,770,403 2016

2016 747,269,712



12

4.2

2017 12 31 2016 12 31

2017 4 13

2017 12 31 2016

12

2016
17,666,606

31

178/290
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59,578,666
2016 108,333

SFO

SFO
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14.2

15

16

124,147,337 46,175,570
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2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

124,147,337 46,175,570

401,297,806 288,335,552 401,297,806 288,335,552

43,657,188 182,069,517 43,657,188
53,305,326 33,654,940 53,305,326 33,654,940

13,668,065 13,668,065

94,309,200

179/290



2017 12 31
2016

2017 2016
33,654,940 37,606,885
781,123 781,123
(71,758)
18,869,263 (4,661,310)
53,305,326 33,654,940
18,869, 263 (4,661,310)
18,869,263 (2,817,089)
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
2017 2016
196,829, 358 291,360,033
306,458,428 45,219
214,959,879 279,355,907
718,247,665 570,761,159

180/290
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7.1

2016

2016

2017

2017

12 31

12 31
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2017 2016
12,656,716 8,126,022
1,186,025 11,717,951
5,062,860 3,381,720
27.6 601,706,185 182,411,930
620,611,786 205,637,623

2017 2016
165,346,134 152,527,302
651,042,140 50,694,059
48,773,080 89,167,919
2,736,415 2,731,596
867,897,769 295,120,876
13.46 148,120
13.60 (6,810)
14.09 (2,710)
5.00 (2,000)
3.94 (1,000)
13.63 135,600
13.63 135,600
13.60 (10,870)
14.09 (5,010)
13.61 119,720

181/290
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2017 12 31 119,720,000 2016 135,600,000
93,170,000 2016 66,986,000 13.62 2016 13.43
2017 12 31

2016 3,000,000

2017 2016
2021 11 11 13.60 26,550 37,420
2021 12 16 14.09 88,570 93,580
2022 30 3.94 600 600
2022 12 4.56 4,000 4,000
2017 2016
27.7 39,745,846 23,419,825
12 13 13,418,677 11,115,529
11,454,230 10,997,433
8,998,155 4,452,389
7,382,830 9,930,259
5,451,327 5,477,351
5,120,837 4,495,959
4,907,671 1,173,186
3,792,166 3,967,211
1,920,240 1,997,264
1,836,889 2,130,711
139,342 109,328
21,760 353,000
4,625 729,332
11,519,520 12,732,584
115,714,115 93,081,361

2017 2016

182/290



10

2017 12 31

14.1

20

14.1

16

183/290
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150,184,997
(4,105,407)

(15,751,634)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

102,933,161
(114,363, 755)

(1,847,297)

11,172,936
7,883,311 (13,261,572)
149,384,203 (26,539,463)
16.5 2016 16.5
2017 2016
12,098,198 2,792,375
30,892 1,019,135

(3,142,333)

(3.,534,627)

8,986,757 276,883
(894,745) (928,540)
8,092,012 (651,657)




16.5 2016

11.

12

2016

2016 12 31

16.5
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2017 2016
230,352,759 (26,814,142)
38,008,205 (4,584,986)
(45,129,434) (26,711,421)

19,219,426 34,953,919

30,892 1,019,135
(3,142,333) (3,534,627)
(894,744) (1,793,677)
8,092,012 (651,657)

2017 2016

15.1 2,419,841 (868,358)
2,419,841 (868,358)

( ) ) ( ) ( ( )
20,658,185 4,403,383 13,654,081 1,691,618 40,407,267

(13,973,218)

(3,685,513) (8,751,425)

(845,809) (27,255,965)

6,684,967 717,870 4,902,656 845,809 13,151,302
6,684,967 717,870 4,902,656 845,809 13,151,302
311,346 90,245 1,977,760 2,379,351

(3,772,973)

(214,606) (2,700,948)

(563,873)  (7,252,400)

184/290
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3,223,340 593,509 4,179,468 281,936 8,278,253
2016 12 31
20,969,531 4,493,628 15,631,841 1,691,618 42,786,618
(17,746,191)  (3,900,119) (11,452,373) (1,409,682) (34,508,365)
3,223,340 593,509 4,179,468 281,936 8,278,253
2017 12 31
3,223,340 593,509 4,179,468 281,936 8,278,253
5,071,350 922,603 5,993,953
(16,542,954)  (3,411,320) (6,878,797) (26,833,071)
(6,277,251) (216,462) (2,886,255)  (281,936) (9,661,904)
16,542,954 3,411,320 6,877,507 26,831,781
2,017,439 377,047 2,214,526 4,609,012
2017 12 31
9,497,927 1,082,308 9,675,647 1,691,618 21,947,500

(7.480,488)

(705,261) (7,461,121)

(1,691,618) (17,338,488)

2,017,439

377,047 2,214,526

4,609,012

185/290
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13
2016 1 1
22,519,749 22,519,749
(9,859,116) (9,859,116)
12,660,633 12,660,633
2016 12 31
12,660,633 12,660,633
1,949,522 1,949,522
(3,863,129) (3,863,129)
10,747,026 10,747,026
2016 12 31
24,469,271 24,469,271
(13,722,245) (13,722,245)
10,747,026 10,747,026
2017 12 31
10,747,026 10,747,026
1,687,070 7,500,000 9,187,070
(4,367,457) (4,367,457)
(3,756,773) (3,756,773)
4,367,457 4,367,457
8,677,323 7,500,000 16,177,323
2017 12 31
21,788,884 7,500,000 29,288,884
(13,111,561) (13,111,561)
8,677,323 7,500,000 16,177,323
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14
14.1
2017 2016
38,464,394 38,464,394
(15,751,634)
(22,712,760)
12 31 38,464,394
2016 12 31
62.05
30,000,000
10 )
15,751,634 2017 12 31
2016
2017 6 29 62.05 3,500
62.05
2017 8 1,120

34,852,443
(966,747)

33,885,696

187/290



14.2

2017 12 31

2016 12 31
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( )
697,907

51,876
6,415,000
1,463,278

678,004

42,875,275

(896,914)

51,284,426
(28,571,666)

22,712,760
33,885,696

11,172,936

34,852,443
(966,747)
(42,875,275)

(8,989,579)

2017 2016

96 95

188/290
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15

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
( )
64,984,178 64,984,178
238,159 163,070 238,159 163,070
58,925,000 46,012,500 58,925,000 46,012,500
oo 12,147,837 46175570 oo 124,147,337 _ _ 46,175,570
(
)
8,014,229 5,504,388 8,014,229 5,504,388
401,297,806 250,428,552 401,207,806 250,428,552
44,995,572 37,907,000 44,995,572 37,907,000
129,059,716 38,062,800 129,059,716 38,062,800
- 975,353,094 _ 326,398,352 _ _ 8,014,229 __ _5,594,388 _ 563,367,323 _ 331,992,740
53,305,326 33,654,940 53,305,326 33,654,940
53,305,326 33,654,940 53,305,326 33,654,940
752,805,757 406,228,862 8,014,229 5,504,388 760,819,986 411,823,250
699,262,272 406,065,792 8,014,229 5,504,388 707,276,501 411,660,180
53,543,485 163,070 53,543,485 163,070
752,805,757 406,228,862 8,014,229 5,504,388 760,819,986 411,823,250
2016 12 31 16
2017 12 31 2016 12 31 14.2
27.3
27.3
600 45 2016 100 35
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2017 12 31

15.2
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2017 2016
177,408,782 79,751,935
168,377
8,014,229 5,594,388
574,561,347 326,055,974
667,251 420,953
760,819,986 411,823,250
2017 2016
5,594,388 6,462,746
11 2,419,841 (868,358)
8,014,229 5,594,388
2016
2017 2016
25
22 21

190/290
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2017 2016
796,727,000
13,941,000
209,207,000 177,993,000
38,143,000 1,324,000
2017 11 20
27.3
16
2017 2016
13,668,065
13,668,065
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
2017 2016
(448,631)

(1,398,666)

(1,847,297)

191/290
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17

2017 12 31
2016

2017 2016

30 453,118 490,381
90 2,537

455,655 490,381
335,546,632 28,245,260
336,002,287 28,735,641

2017 2016
120,114,987 22,252,569
215,887,300 6,483,072
336,002,287 28,735,641

2017 12 31

192/290

2016



18

19

2016
2016
2017
2017

2017
2016

12

12

12

2016

31

15,000,000

0.1

2017
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56,286,436
799,883,973
6,466,466

2016

41,040,395
1,221,662,722
6,329,754

862,636,875

1,269,032,871

2017

574,982,818
4,191,238
273,119,061
10,343,758

2016

526,392,615
3,752,792
737,488,022
1,399,442

862,636,875

1,269,032,871

( ) «( ) «( )

11,409,459 3,893,318 11,854,704 41,913,288 53,767,992
15,000,000
3,893,318 2016 3,893,318 0.1
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20
2016 (1,494,374)
10 928,540
2016 12 31 2017 (565,834)
10 894,745
2017 12 31 328,911
2017 2016
12 328,911 (565,834)
328,911 (565,834)
21
2017 2016
30 9,075,249 7,563,508
31 60 84
61 90 93
9 245
9,075,671 7,563,508

2017 12 31 2016 12 31

194/290
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22

2017 2016
58,118,563 241,729,924
17 336,002,287 28,735,641
19,020,467 11,623,258
18 862,636,875 1,269,032,871
15 752,805,757 406,228,862
16 13,668,065

14.2 94,309,200
15 8,014,229 5,594,388
14,065,546 26,055,029
651,170,809 51,540,652
230,000,000 300,000,000
21 9,075,671 7,563,508
17,751,216 10,316,036
153,081,227 747,269,712
15,704,857 59,578,666
23
2017 2016
) ( )
15.030
2016 19.604 ) 230,000,000 300,000,000
2017 230,000,000 2016 300,000,000 2017
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2017

230,352,759

(12,656,716)
(6,248,885)
13,418,677

(141,500, 892)

(8,576,993)

183,611,361

(307,266, 646)
141,407,295

2016

(26,814,142)

(8,126,022)
(15,099,671)
11,115,529
13,277,891

79,972
57,622,649
99,290,413
56,519,461

(173,144,567)

(3,737,180) (1,172,605)
3,715,374 (123,848, 653)
599,630,157 (87,172,997)
1,512,163 (54,105,421)
7,435,180 (6,570,269)
(594,188, 485) 239,125,934
(59,578, 666) 59,578,666
47,328,503 40,556,168
2017 2016
37,790,668 19,820,275
54,128,219 13,803,818
91,918,887 33,624,093
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2017 12 31
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2016 12 31

2016 12 31
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2017 2016
2,500,000

289,000 289,000
2017 2016
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306,299,054 33,794,554
23,740,025 45,969,216
54,000 54,000
330,093,079 79,817,770
2017 2016
( ) ( )
6,003,000 4,671,300
19,513,000 14,829,200
10,864,000 8,932,000
10,395,000 7,815,000
94,309,200 87,812,160
99,792 74,062
329,992
13,668,065
198,448,147
17,262,650 13,715,800
82,726,216
(
46,333,500 38,062,800
1,564 1,552
365,280 265,868
46,849,996 65,672,642
138,635,657 170,698,028
44,300,300 37,907,600
12,150,000 9,765,000
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728,587,294 473,891,077

12

2017 12 31
2016 998,670
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27.6
2017
409,253,400 2017 12 31
601,706,185 2016 182,411,930
27.7
2017 12 31
39,745,846 2016 23,419,825
27.8
2017 12 31 230,000,000 2016 300,000,000

27.9
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets
Investment in subsidiaries
Investments

Other assets

Current assets

Amounts due from related companies
Investments

Investments held-for-sale

Fees raceivable

Prepayments and other receivables
Deposit with brokers

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Amounts due to related companies
Accerued bonus

Dividends payable

Distribution fee expenses payable
Other payables and accrued expenses
Cuorrent tax liabilities

Net current assets

On behalf of the Board

Note

HEBLR

27.4
16
17

18

27.4

23
21
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2017 2016

HKs HEKS$
4,609,012 8,278,253
16,177,323 10,747,026
328,011 -
94,300,200 126,276,554
707,276,501 411,660,180
11,180,051 2,603,058
833,880,998 559,565,071
58,118,563 241,729,924
53,543,485 163,070

- 13,608,005
336,002,287 28,735,641
23,183,842 19,178,636
31,737,272 173,144,567
862,636,875 1,260,032,871
1,365,222,324  1,745,652,774
29,770,403 26,055,020
633,504,203 51,432,319
230,000,000 300,000,000
9,075,671 7,563,508
17,751,216 10,316,036
12,710,784 1,465,784
932,812,277 396,832,676
432,410,047  1,348,820,008

The notes on pages 9 to 44 are an integral part of these financial statements,

_5_
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017

Note 2017 2016
HEKsS HKs$
Non-current liabilities
Amounts due to ultimate holding company 27.4 153,081,227 747,260,712
Amounts due to immediate holding company 27.4 - 56,578,666
Accrued bonus 17,666,606 108,333
Deferred tax liabilities 20 - 565,834
170,747,833 807,522,545
Net assets 1,005,543,212  1,100,862,624
Equity i
Issued E'f!"-"tY 19 53,767,992 53,767,992
Rmra_luatmn reserve 7,722,104 5,302,263
Retained earnings 1,034,053,116  1,041,702,360
Total equity 1,095,543,212  1,100,862,624
On behalf of the Board

The notes on pages g to 44 are an integral part of these financial statements,

.
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER zo17

Income

Fee income

Distribution fee expenses

Net fee income

Other income

Total net income

Expenses

Compensation and benefit expenses

Operating lease rentals
Other expenses

Total expenses

Net gains/(losses) on investments

Net losses on investments held-for-sale
Impairment loss on investment in subsidiary
Gains on disposal of a subsidiary

Others

Other gains/(losses) - net

Profit/(loss) before tax

Tax (expense)/credit
Profit/(loss) for the year

Note

= I |

£E

10

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year
- Items that may be subsequently reclassified to

profit or loss

Fair value gaing/(losses) on available-for-sale financial

assets

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 11

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year

EDINETOOOO
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2017 2016

HKs HKS$
718,247,665 570,761,159
(251,717,226)  (365,709,954)
466,530,439 205,051,205
620,011,786 205,637,623
1,087,142,205 410,688,828
(867,897,769)  (295,120,876)
(22,561,785) (22,761,270)
(115,714,115) (93,081,361)
(1,006,173,660)  (410,963,507)
146,079,590 (11,430,594)
- (1,847,297)
(15,751,634) -
11,172,936 -
7,883,311 (13,261,572)
149,384,203 (26,539,463)
230,352,759 (26,814,142)
(8,002,012) 651,657
222 260,747 (26,162,485)
2,419,841 (868,358)
2,419,841 (868,358)
224,680,588 (27,030,843)

The notes on pages g to 44 are an integral part of these finaneial statements,
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
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Issued  Revaluation Retained
Note equity reserve earnings Total
HKs HEs HES HEs
As at 1 January 2016 53,767,002 6,170,621 1,367,054,854  1,427,803,467
Loss for the year - - (26,162,485) (26,162,485)
Other comprehensive loss
Fair value losses on available-for-
sale financial assets 15.1 - (868,358) - (868,358)
- Total comprehensive loss - (868,358) (26,162,485) (27,050,843)
Transactions with owners in
their capacity as owners
Dividends to owners of the
Company 23 - - (300,000,000} (300,000,000)
Capital contribution - share-
based compensation 7 89,167,919 - - 89,167,919
Capital contribution - repurchase
of equity instrument 7 {B9,167,910) - - (89,167,919)
Total transactions with
owners in their capacity as
OWTIEFS - - (3goo,000000)  (300,000,000)
As at 31 December 2016
and 1 January 2017 53,767,992 5302,263  1,041,792,369  1,100,862,624
Profit for the year - - 203,360,747 222,260,747
Other comprehensive loss
Fairvalue gains on available-for-
sale financial assets 15.1 - 2,410,841 - 2,419,841
Total comprehensive loss - 2,419,841 222,260,747 224,680,588
Transactions with owners in
their capacity as owners
Dividends to awners of the
Company 23 - - [230,000,000) (230,000,000)
Capital contribution - share-
based compensation 7 48,773,080 - - 48,773,080
Capital contribution - repurchase
of equity instrument - (48,773,080) - - (48,773,080)
Total transactions with
owners in their capacity as
OWNeETSs - = (230,000,000} (230,000,000}
As at 31 December 2017 53,767,992 7,722,104  1,034,053,116  1,005543,212

The notes on pages 9 to 44 are an integral part of these financial statements,
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER zo17

Note 2017 2016
HEs HES
Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash generated from operations 24 47,328,503 40,556,168
Interest received 12,388,600 7,200,128
Tax paid/(refund) 2,258,243 (1,019,035)
Net cash generated from operating activities 61,975,436 46,737,261
Cash flows from investing activities
Disposal of investment in a subsidiary 14 33,885,606
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assels (15,181,023) (4,328,873)
Disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets 1,200 =
Purchase of investments (345,313,813) (15,232,973)
Disposal of investments 152,008,284 542,413,583
Dividends received from investments 6,228,134 15,070,976
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing
activities (168,371,432) 537,922,713
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid (300,000,000)  (410,000,000)
Net cash used in financing activities (300,000,000) (410,000,000)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (406,395,006) 174,650,074
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 1,260,032,871  1,004,372,8q7
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 862,626,875 1,260,032,871

The notes on pages 9 to 44 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMEER 2017

General information

Value Partners Limited (the "Company™) is a limited liability company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands. The address of its registered office and its principal place of business are
Commerce House, Wickhams Cay 1, P.O. Box 3140, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin
Islands and oth Floor, Nexxus Building, 41 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong respectively.

The Company is licensed to carry out activities of dealing in securities, dealing in futures
contracts, advising on securities, advising on futures contracts and asset management under the
Hong Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance. The Company principally provides investment
management services to investment funds and managed accounts.

The Company is wholly owned by Value Partners Hong Kong Limited, the immediate holding
company, while Value Partners Group Limited is the ultimate holding company. Value Partners
Group Limited is listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (*HK$"), unless otherwise stated.
These financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 April
2018.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set
out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HEFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA"). The financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of investments.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HEFRSs requires the use of
accounting estimates. It also requires the directors to exercise their judgement in the process of
applying the Company’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements,
are disclosed in note 3 helow.

New standards, amendments and interpretations issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2017 and have not been early adopted

HEFRS 9 "Finaneial instruments” addresses the classification, measurement and recognition of
financial assets and liabilities. It replaces the guidance in HKAS 3o that relates to the elassification
and measurement of financial instruments. HKFRS ¢ retains but simplifies the mixed
measurement model and establishes three primary measurement categories for financial assets:
amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive income and fair value through profit or
loss. The basis of classification depends on the entity’s business model and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial asset. Investments in equity instruments are required to be
measured at fair valuoe through profit or loss with the irrevocable option at inception to present
changes in fair value in other comprehensive income not recyeling. There is now a new expected
credit losses model that replaces the incurred loss impairment model used in HKAS 39. For
financial liabilities, there were no changes to classification and measurement except for the
recognition of changes in own credit risk in other comprehensive income, The standard is effective
for aceounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. Early adoption is permitted.

_g_

206/290



EDINETOOOO
OO000D0000DO00DO0Oo(EL4980)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Basis of preparation (continued)

New standards, amendments and interpretations issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2017 and have not been early adopted (continued)

The Company has assessed HKFRS g's impact on the financial statements. A majority of the
Company’s financial instruments include equity investments currently measured at fair value
through profit or loss which will continue to be measured on the same basis under HKFRS g. The
Company also holds equity instruments currently classified as available-for-sale, and expects
these equity instruments will be reclassified to financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
under HKFRS 9. Related fair value gains or losses will have to be transferred from the available-
for-sale financial assets revaluation reserve to retained earnings on 1 January 2018, and the
Company does not expect it will have significant impact on the financial statements. As most of
the Company’s financial instruments are measured at financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, the company does not expect the new expected credit losses model requirements will have
significant impact on the financial statements,

HEFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers” deals with revenue recognition and
establishes prineiples for reporting useful information to users of financial statements about the
nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from an entity's
contracts with customers. Revenue is recognized when a customer obtains control of a good or
service and thus has the ability to direct the use and obtain the benefits from the good or service.
The standard replaces HKAS 18 “Revenue” and HKAS 11 “Construction contracts” and related
interpretations. The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
and earlier application is permitted. The Company has assessed that there will not be significant
impact on the financial statements.

HEFRS 16 “Leases” will result in almost all leases being recognized on the statement of financial
position, as the distinction between operating and finance leases is removed. Under the new
standard, an asset (the right to use the leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals are
recognized. The only exceptions are short-term and low-value leases. The accounting for lessors
will not significantly change. Some of the commitments may be covered by the exception for
short-term and low-value leases and some commitments may relate to arrangements that will not
qualify as leases under HKFRS 16. The standard is mandatory for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2019. The Company is yet to assess HKFRS 16's full impact.

There are no other HKFRSs or HK(IFRIC) Interpretations that are not yet effective that would be
expected to have a material impact on the Company.

Consolidation

These financial statements are separate finaneial statements of the Company. The Company is
exempted from preparing consolidated financial statements under HEKFRS 10 "Consolidated
financial statements” as the Company itself is a wholly-owned subsidiary of a parent which the
ultimate holding company produces consolidated financial statements available for public use in
accordance with HEFRS. Refer to note 1 for the address where the consolidated financial
statements are available.

_1D_
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2.3

2.4

VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER zo17

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Consolidation (continued)
Structured entities

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so that voting or similar rights are not the
dominant factor in deciding who controls the entity, such as when any voting rights relate to
administrative tasks only, and the relevant activities are directed by means of contractual
arrangements. A structured entity often has restricted activities and a narrow and well defined
objective, such as to provide investment opportunities for investors by passing on risks and
rewards associated with the assets of the structured entity. Consequently, investment funds are
considered as “structured entities”.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the Company has control.
The Company controls an entity when the Company is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
retumns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity,

De-facto control of an entity may arise from circumstances where the Company does not have
more than 50% of the voting power but it has the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of
the entity.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment. Cost is adjusted to reflect
changes in consideration arising from contingent consideration arrangements. Cost aleo includes
directly attributable costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon receiving dividends from
these investments if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive ineome of the subsidiary in the
period in which the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in the
separate financial statements exceeds the investee's net assets.

Associates
Associates are all entities over which the Company has significant influence but not control.

The Company has invested in certain investment funds that it manages. As an investment
manager, the Company may put seed capital in investment funds that it manages in order to
facilitate their Jaunch. The purpose of seed capital is to ensure that the investment funds can have
a reasonable starting fund size to operate and to build track record. The Company may
subsequently vary the holding of these seed capital investments depending on the market
conditions and various other factors. The Company has applied the measurement exemption
within HKAS 28 “Investments in associates and joint ventures” for mutual funds, unit trusts and
similar entities and such investments are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss.

=11 =
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)
Foreign currency translation
(a)  Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which it operates (the “funetional
currency”), The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income,

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gains or
losses. Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets such as equities classified
as available-for-sale finaneial assets are included in other comprehensive income.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, comprising leasehold improvements, furniture and fixtures, office
equipment and vehicles, are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably, The carrying amount of
the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement
of comprehensive income during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is caleulated using the straight-line method to
allocate cost over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold improvements Ower the lease terms
Furniture and fixtures Five years

Office equipment Three years
Vehicles Three years

The assets’ useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period. An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amounts and
are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

_12_
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER z017

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
z.7 Imtangible assets
(a) Computer software

Aequired computer software licenses are capitalised on the basis of the eosts incurred to
acquire and bring to use the specific software. These costs are amortised over their
estimated useful lives (five years).

Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer software programmes are
recognised as an expense as incurred. Costs that are directly associated with the
development of identifiable and unique software products controlled by the Company, and
that will probably generate economic benefits exceeding costs beyond one year, are
recognised as intangible assets. Computer software development costs recognised as
assets are amortised over their estimated useful lives (not exceeding five years).

(h)  Others

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The
useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible
assets with finite lives are subsequently amortized over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible asset with
a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either
individually or at the cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortized.
The useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether the indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the

change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a
prospective basis.

2.8 Impairment

(a) Impairment of intangible assets and other non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which an asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. Forthe
purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (CGUs). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each
reporting date.
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER zo17

2 Summary of signifieant accounting policies {continued)
2.8 Impairment (continued)
(b) Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective
evidence of impairment as a resolt of one or more events that cccurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a loss event) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated.

2.9 Non-current assets held-for-sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale when their carrying amount is to be recovered
principally through a sale transaction and a sale is considered highly probable, The non-current
assets are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell,

The Company acts as an investment manager to a number of investment funds, and has provided
seed capital for the set up of these funds. Certain interests in such investment funds are controlled
by the Company and are classified as held-for-sale as the Company intends to market these funds
and dilute its holdings as soon as practically possible to a level where its aggregate economie
interests does not constitute a control.

210 Financial assets

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-for-sale, The classification
depends on the purposes for which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition,

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading and
those being designated in accordance with the measurement exemption within HEAS 28,
A financial asset is classified as held for trading if acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the short term. Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading,

Held for trading finanecial assets are included in current assets. Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss being designated in accordance with the measurement
exemption within HKAS 28 are included in non-current assets unless management
intends to dispose of the financial assets within 12 months of the end of the reporting
period.

(b)  Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets,
except for maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the reporting period which

are classified as non-current assets. The Company's loans and receivables comprise
mainly fees receivable, other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents,

=14 =
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.10 Financial assets (continued)
{(¢)  Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial instruments that are either
designated in this category or not classified as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, held-to-maturity financial assets or loans and receivables. They are included in
non-carrent assets unless management intends to dispose of the investments within 12
months of the end of the reporting period.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade-date - the date on
which the Company commits to purchase or sell the financial assets. They are initially recognised
at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or
loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair
value, and transaction costs are expensed in the statement of comprehensive income. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and available-for-sale financial assets are
subsequently earried at fair value. Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method,

GGains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.
Changes in the fair value of securities classified as available-for-sale financial assets are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale financial assets are sold or impaired, the
accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity are included in the statement of
comprehensive income as gains and losses from available-for-sale financial assets,

Interest on available-for-sale securities caleulated using the effective interest method is recognised
in the statement of comprehensive income as part of other income, Dividends on available-for-
sale equity instruments are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as part of other
income when the Company's right to receive payments is established.

The fair value of quoted financial assets is based on last traded market prices. If the market for a
financial asset is not active and for unlisted securities, the Company establishes fair value by using
external valuations or valuation techniques. These include the use of prices provided by fund
administrators and valuations performed by external valuation specialists, making maximum use
of market inputs and relying as little as possible on entity-specific inputs.

The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity securities classified
as available-for-sale financial assets, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is evidence that the assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists for
available-for-sale financial assets, the comulative loss - measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impaitment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in profit or loss - is removed from equity and recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income. Impairment losses recognised in the statement of comprehensive income
on equity securities classified as available-for-sale financial assets are not reversed through the
statement of comprehensive income.
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.10 Financial assets (continued)

Transfers between levels of the fair value measurement hierarchy are recognised as of the date of
the event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer,

2,11 Derivative financial instroments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at their fair value. The derivative
financial instruments are designated as non-hedging instruments and are classified as current
assets or liabilities. Changes in the fair value of any non-hedging derivative finaneial instruments
are recognised immediately in the statement of comprehensive income.

2.12 Fees receivable

Fees receivable are initially recognised at fair value of the fee income receivable and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any provision for impairment.
A provision for impairment of fees receivable is established when there is objective evidence that
the Company will not be able to eollect all amounts due.

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and brokers and
other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

2.14 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
2,15 Current and deferred tax

‘The current tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
by the reporting date in the jurisdictions where the Company operates and generates taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and establishes provisions,
where appropriate, on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temperary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
However, deferred tax is not aceounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or a
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date and are expected
to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled,

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences ean be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against eurrent tax liabilities and when the deferred tax assets and liabilities
relate to taxes levied by the same tax authority.

- 16 -
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER zo017

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.15 Current and deferred tax {continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are provided on temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences is controlled by
the Company and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future,

2,16 Income recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the provision of
investment management services in the ordinary course of the Company’s activities,

The Company recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met
for each of the Company’s activities as deseribed below. The amount of revenue is not considered
to be reliably measurable until all contingeneies relating to the provision of services have been
resolved. Revenoe is recognised as follows:

(a)  Feesfrom investment management activities

Management fees are recognised on a time-proportion basis with reference to the net
asset value of the investment funds and managed accounts.

Performance fees are recognised on the performance fee valuation day of the investment
funds and managed accounts when there is a positive performance for the relevant
performance period, taking into consideration the relevant basis of ealeulation for the
investment funds and managed accounts.

{b) Feesfrom fund distribution activities
Front-end fees are recognised on a straight-line basis over the estimated holding perinds
of the investors in the investment funds. Any unrecognised amounts are treated as
deferred income.

{c) Interestincome

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest
method.

(d) Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.
2.17 Fee expenses
(a) Distribution fee expenses
Distribution fee expenses represent rebates of management fee, performance fee and
front-end fee income by the Company to the distributors for selling its products.
Distribution fee expenses are recognised when the corresponding management fees,

performance fees and front-end fees are earned by the Company and the Company is
obliged to pay the rebates.

_1'?_
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMEER 2017

z Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2,18 Compensation and benefits
(a) Bonus

The Company recognises a liability and an expense for bonus on a basis that takes into
consideration the profit attributable to owners of the Company and various other factors,
The bonus is paid in cash to employees and directors. The Company recognises a liability
where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.

(b)  Share-based compensation

Certain directors and employees have been granted options over ordinary shares of the
ultimate holding company under a share option scheme. The fair value of employee
services received by the Company in exchange for the grant of share options is recognised
as an expense. The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair

value of the share options granted:

. including any market performance conditions;

. excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting
conditions; and

. including the impact of any non-vesting conditions.

Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the number of share
options that are expected to vest. The total expense is recognised over the vesting period,
which is the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At
the end of each reporting period, the entity revises its estimates of the number of share
options that are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting conditions. It
recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the statement of
comprehensive income.

In the same financial period, the ultimate holding company makes a recharge to the
Company in respect of the options granted to the Company’s employees.

{c) Pension obligations

The Company participates in a mandatory provident fund scheme in Hong Kong which is
a defined contribution plan generally funded through payments to trustee-administered
funds, The Company pays contributions to the mandatory provident fund scheme on a
mandatory basis. The Company has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the mandatory provident fund scheme does not hold sufficlent assets to
pay all employees the benefits relating to employee services in the current and prior
periods. The contributions are recognised as compensation and benefit expenses when
they are due.

{d) Other employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit costs are charged in the period to which the employee
services relate.

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long-service leave are recognised when they
acerue to employees. An accrual is made for the estimated liability for annuoal leave and
long-service leave as a result of serviees rendered by employees up to the reporting date.

- 18 -
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the statement of comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholder is recognised as a liability in the Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company's
shareholder or directors, as appropriate.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Company. It can also be a present obligation arising from past
events that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow of economic resources will be
required or the amount of obligation eannot be measured reliably. A contingent liability is not
recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the financial staterments, When a change in the

probability of an outflow occurs so that the outflow is probable, it will be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-oceurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Company. A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements, where necessary, when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable. When inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
Fair value estimation of derivative financial instruments

The Company holds derivative financial instrument that are not traded or quoted in active market.
The Company uses its judgment to select appropriate methods and make assumptions based on
market conditions existing at the end of each reporting period to estimate the fair value of the
financial instrument. Although best estimate is used in estimating fair value, there are inherent
limitations in any valuation technique, Estimated fair value may differ from the value that would
have been used if a readily available market existed.

Investment funds managed by the Company

The Company acts as an investment manager to a number of investment funds and has provided
seed capital for the set up of these funds. When determining whether the Company controls these
funds, usually the level of aggregate economie interests of the Company in these funds and the
level of investors’ rights to remove the investment manager are considered,

The Company determines that it has no control over some investment funds since the level of
aggregate economic interests of the Company in those funds is not so significant that it gives the

Company control over the funds together with the level of investors’ rights to remove the
investment manager.

-l-g-
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

Investment funds managed by the Company (continued)

The Company determines that it has control over some investment funds and has classified them
as held-for-sale as it intends to market these funds and dilute its holdings as soon as practically
possible to a level where its aggregate economic interests does not constitute a control,

Financial risk management

Financial risk factors

The Company’s activities in relation to financial instruments expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk
and liguidity risk. The Company’s overall financial risk management programme focuses on the
analysis, evaluation and management of financial risks and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Company’s financial performance.

(a)

(b)

Foreign exchange risk

The Company has transactions with counterparties in different locations and is exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with respect to
the United States dollar. Foreign exchange risk arises when future transactions or
recognised assets or liabilitics are denominated in a currency that is not the entity’s
functional currency.

As at 31 December 2o17 and 2016, the majority of the assets and liabilities are
denominated in Hong Kong dollar {the Company’s functional and presentation currency)
and United States dollar which is currently linked to Hong Kong dollar within a narcow
range. The directors therefore consider that there is no significant foreign exchange risk
with respect to the United States dollar.

The following table shows the approximate changes in the Company’s post-tax profit for
the year and equity in response to reasonable possible change in the foreign exchange
rates to which the Company has significant exposure as at 31 December, with all other
variables held constant.

Impact on other
Change Impact on post-tax profit components of equity
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
HEKS HES HEsS HK$
Taiwan dollar T -5 +/-5% +[-200,000 +[-040,000
Renminbi +/-5% +/-5%  +/-5755000  +/-10,789,000

Refer to notes 15, 17, 18 and 21 for additional disclosures on foreign exchange exposure.
Interest rate risk

The Company’s expenses and financing cash flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates as the Company has no interest bearing liabilities.

The Company is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk mainly in respect of bank balances
and time deposits.

-2{:-
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Finaneial risk management (continued)

Finaneial risk factors (continued)

(b)

(c)

Interest rate risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2017, if interest rates had been 50 basis points (2016: 50 basis points)
(these represent a reasonable possible shift in the interest rates, having regard to the
historical volatility of the interest rates) higher or lower with all other variables held
constant, the Company's post-tax profit and equity would have been approximately
HE$120,000 higher or lower (2016: HK$92,000 higher or lower) respectively. The
sensitivity analysis for the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 was primarily arising
from the increase or decrease in interest income on cash and cash equivalents.

Price risk

The Company is exposed to equity securities price risk in respect of investments held by
the Company. The majority of the Company’s investments are investments in investment
funds managed by it and related eompanies as seed capital and other investments in listed
investment funds.

The table below summarises the approximate impact of increases or decreases in the
markets in which the Company’s investments operate. For the purpose of measuring
sensitivity of the Company's investments against markets, the Company uses the
correlation between the price movements of the MSCI China Index and the Company’s
investments because the Company's investments mainly focus on the Greater China
equities market and the directors consider that the MSCI China Index iz a well-known
index representing the universe of opportunities for investments in the Greater China
equities market available to non-domestic investors.

The analysis is based on the assumption that the index had increased or decreased by the
stated percentages (these represent a reasonable possible shift in the index, having regard
to the historical volatility of the index) with all other variables held constant and the
investments moved according to the historical correlation with the index.

Change Post-tax profit
2017 2016 2017 2016
HEKS HEKS
MSCI China Index +/-10% +/-10% +/-31,680,000 +/-31,171,000

Post-tax profit would increase or decrease as a result of gains or losses on investments
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and investments held-for-
sale.

Refer to note 15 for additional disclosures on price risk.
In addition to equity securities price risk in respect of investments held by the Company,
the Company is exposed to price risk indirectly in respect of management fee and

performance fee income which are determined with reference to the net asset value and
performance of the investment funds and managed accounts respectively.

_21_
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Financial risk management (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)

(d)

(e)

Credit risk
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Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, deposits with brokers and related
interest receivable placed with banks and financial institutions as well as amounts
receivable on sale of investments. Credit risk also arises from credit exposures with
respect to the investment funds and managed accounts on the eutstanding fees receivable.
The Company earns fees from investment management activities and fund distribution

activities from the investment funds and managed accounts.

Credit risk is managed on a group basis and the credit quality of

the counterparty is

assessed, taking into account its finaneial position, past experience and other factors.

The table below summarises the credit quality by reference to

credit ratings from

Standard & Poor’s or Fitch Ratings’ of cash and cash equivalents, restricted bank balances
and related interest receivable placed with banks and financial institutions.

2017
HKS

A+ 7,288,178
A 200,281,711
A= 55,676,210
131,589,952
EEBB 501,086,202
9,975

2016
HES

7,276,557
ﬁﬂgﬁ:ﬂsm
279,560,796
348,955,779
198,026,745
24,307

895,932,228

1,443.477,283

The directors do not expect any losses from non-performance by these counterparties,

The credit quality of the fees receivable are disclosed in note 17.
Liquidity risk

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining a sufficient amount of liquid assets
to ensure daily operational requirements are fulfilled. As at 31 December 2017, the
Company held liquid assets of HK5862,636,875 (2016: HK$1,269,032,871), being cash
and cash equivalents, that are expected to readily generate cash inflows for managing

liquidity risk.

As at 31 December zo1l7, other than other payables and accrued expenses of
HEK$1,702,856 (2016: HEK$2,068,687), amounts due to related companies of
HE$20,770,403 (2016: HK$26,055,020), amounts due to ultimate holding company of

HES153,081,227 (2016 HE$747,260,712) and amounts due to

immediate holding

company of HK$nil (2016: HK$59,578,666) which have no stated maturity, and acerued
bonus of HK$17,666,606 (2016: HK$108,333) which will be due after 12 months of the
reporting date, all of the Company’s financial liabilities have contractual maturities not

longer than three months.

...22-.
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER zo17

Financial risk management (continued)
Capital risk management

The Company's objectives in managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going
coneern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders. In order
to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce liabilities.
The Company monitors capital on the basis of the total equity as shown in the statement of
financial position. The Company's strategy is to maintain a solid capital base to support the
operations and development of its business in the long term.

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Company is licensed to carry out the following regulated
activities under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance (*SFO"),

Type 1 Dealing in securities

Typez2 Dealing in futures contracts @
Type 4 Advising on securities

Type 5 Advising on futures contracts
Typea Asset management

{a) The Company obtained Type 2 lcense on 13 April 2oa7.

The Company is subject to and complied with capital requirements on the paid-up capital and
liquid capital requirements under the SFO for the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

Fair value estimation

The following table presents the Company’s financial instruments that are measured at fair value
at the end of the reporting period by level of the fair value measurement hierarchy.

Lewvel 1 Level 2 Lewvel 3 Totul
01T 2016 2017 2oab oLy 2016 aonly 2016
HES HES HE$ HE$ HES HES HES HES
Imvestments (Kote 15)
Listed securities 124,147,337 46,175.570 - - - - 14147337 46175570
Unlisted seourities
Investment funds
= Cayman Islands - = qo,207,B06 288335552 - - qonagrBod 288335552
Others - = 182,060,517 43657188 - - 12000517 43557168
Dierivative financial
instroments - - - - E3,30%326 33454040 53505326 33,054,940
Ievestments held-for-sale
(Mot 36) - - « 1EG58,065 - - = 13,668,065
Investment ina
subsidiary (note 14.2) . - 94,300,200 - . + O4300,200 -

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices
for identical instruments at the reporting date, A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are
readily and regularly available, and those prices represent actueal and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm’s length basis. These instruments are included in level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by
using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable market
data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, either directly (as prices) or indirectly
(derived from prices), the instrument is included in level 2. These instruments include the
Company’s investments in investment funds.

-23.—
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER. z017

Financial risk management (continued)
Fair value estimation (continued)

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is
included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

. Quoted bid prices (or net asset values) provided by fund administrators for unlisted
investment funds. These investment funds invest substantially in listed equities.
. Other techniques, such as valuations performed by external valuation specialists, recent

arm's length transactions or reference to other instruments that are substantially the
same, for the remaining financial instruments,

The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments.

2017 2016
HKS HK=s
Beginning of the year 33,654,040 37,606,885
Additions 781,123 781,123
Return of capital from investment - (71,758)
Gains/(losses) recognised in profit or loss 18,869,263 (4,661,310)
End of the year 53,305,326 33,654,940
Total gains/(losses) for the year included in the statement
of comprehensive income for level 3 instruments for the
year 18,860,263 (4,661,310)
Change in unrealised gains or losses for level 3 instruments
held at year end and included in profit or loss 18,860,263 (2,817,080)

The level 3 instrument includes a derivative financial instrument. As at 31 December 2017 and
2016, the investment in a derivative finaneial instrument, which relates to an over-the-counter
equity swap, was valoed with reference to the broker quote obtained from the market maker. The
Company uses its judgment to select the appropriate methods and make assumptions based on
market conditions existing at the end of each reporting period.

For these level 3 investments, no significant quantitative unobservable inputs are used to
determine their fair value. No quantitative analysis would be presented.

There were no transfers between levels of the fair value measurement hierarchy for the year ended
31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

The carrying value of fees receivable, amounts receivable on sale of investments, other receivables,

deposits with brokers, cash and cash equivalents and financial liabilities approximates their fair
value,
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER zo017

Fee income

Revenue consists of fees from investment management activities and fund distribution activities.

Fee income comprises:

2017 20106

HKS HKS
Management fees 196,820,358 201,360,033
Performance fees 306,458,428 45,219
Front-end fees 214,059,870 279,355,907
Total fee income 718,247,665 570,761,159
Other income

2017 2&15

HKS HKS
Interest income on cash-and cash equivalents 12,656,716 Baz6,022
Dividend income on financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss 1,186,025 11,717,951
Dividend income on available-for-sale financial assets 5,062,860 3,381,720
Service fees from ultimate and immediate holding
companies and related companies (Note 27.6) 601,706,185 182,411,930

Total other income 620,611,786 205,637,623
Compensation and benefit expenses

2017 2016

HEs HKS
Salaries, wages and other benefits 165,346,134 152,527,302
Management bonus 651,042,140 50,604,059
Share-based compensation 48,773,080 89,167,919
Pension costs - mandatory provident fund scheme 2,736,415 2,731,506
Total compensation and benefit expenses 867,897,769 205,120,876

Share-based compensation

The ultimate holding company, Value Partners Group Limited, granted share options to directors,
employees and others whom the directors consider, in their sole diseretion, have contributed to

the Company.
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER. 2017

Compensation and benefit expenses (continued)
Share-based compensation (continued)

Movemnents in the number of share options outstanding and their related exercise prices are as
follows:

Average

exercise Number of

price (HK$ options

per share) (‘ooo)

As at 1 January 2016 13.46 148,120
Forfeited 15.60 (6,810)
Forfeited 14.00 (2,710)
Exercised 5.00 (2,000)
Exercised 3.94 (1.000)
As at 31 December 2016 13.63 135,600
As at 1 January 2017 13.63 135,600
Forfeited 13.60 (10,870)
Forfeited 14.00 (5,010)
As at 31 December 2017 13.61 119,720

Out of the 119,720,000 (2016: 135,600,000) outstanding share options, 93,170,000 (2016:
66,086,000) options were exercisable as at 31 December 2017 with weighted average exercise
price of HEK$13.62 (2016: HE%$13.43) per share. No options were exercised during the year ended
31 December 2017 (2016: 3,000,000).

Share options cutstanding have the following expiry date and exerize price:

Exercise
price (HKS Number of options ("ooo)
Expiry date per share) 2017 2016
11 November 2021 13.60 26,550 37420
16 December 2021 14.00 88,570 93,580
30 May 2022 3.94 Hoo GO0
& December 2022 4.56 4,000 4,000

The above information on number of share options relates to Value Partners Group Limited as a
whole and has not been apportioned among the individual entities due to impracticality,

- a6 -
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER zo017

Other expenses
2017 2016
HES HEKS
Service fees to ultimate holding company and related
companies (Note 27.7) 39,745,846 23,419,825
Depreciation and amortisation (Notes 12 and 13) 13,418,677 11,115,529
Research 11,454,230 10,997,433
Legal and professional fees 8,098,155 4,452,389
Marketing expenses 7,382,830 9,930,259
Office expenses 5:451,327 5477351
Travelling expenses 5,120,837 4,495,959
Recruitment expenses 4,907,671 1,173,186
Insurance expenses 3,792,166 3,967,211
Entertainment expenses 1,020,240 1,997,264
Auditor's remuneration 1,836,889 2,130,711
Registration and licensing fees 139,342 109,328
Donation 21,760 353,000
Transaction cost 4,625 720,332
Others 11,519,520 12,732,584
Total other expenses 115,714,115 93,081,361
Other gains/(losses) - net
2017 2016
HES HKS
Net gains/(losses) on investments
Gains on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 150,184,997 102,933,161
Losses on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss {4,105,407) (114,363,755)
Net losses on investments held-for-sale
Losses on investments held-for-sale (Note 16) - (1,847,297)
Impairment loss on investment in a subsidiary (Note 14.1) (15,751,634) -
Gains on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 14.1) 11,172,936 -
Others
Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) 7,883,311 {13,261,572)
Total other gains/(losses) - net 149,384,203 (26,539,463)

.-.2?'-
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Tax expense/{credit)

Heng Kong profits tax has been provided on the estimated assessable profit for the vear ended 31
December 2017 at the rate of 16.5% (2016: 16.5%). Tax outside Hong Kong is calculated at the

rates applicable in the relevant jurisdictions.

2017 2016
HEKS HEKs
Current tax
Hong Kong profits tax 12,068,108 2,702,375
Overseas tax 30,802 1,019,135
Adjustments in respect of prior years (3,142,333) (3.534,627)
Total current tax 8,986,757 276,883
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (Note 20) (B04,745) (928,540)
Total tax expense/(credit) 8,092,012 (651,657)

The tax on the Company’s profit/(loss) before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would

arise using the tax rate of Hong Kong as follows:

2017 2016
HK3$ HES
Profit/(loss) before tax 230,352,750 (26,814,142)
Tax calculated at a tax rate of 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) 38,008 205 {4,584,986)
Tax effects of:
Non-taxable income and gains on investments (45.,120,434) (26,711,421)
Non-deductible expenses and losses on investments 19,219,426 34,953,919
Cverseas tax 30,892 1,019,135
Adjustments in respect of prior years (3,242,333) (3,534,627)
Others (894,744) (1,793,677)
Tax expense/ (credit) 8,002,012 (651,657)
Other comprehensive income/(loss)
2017 2016
HKs HKS
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to profit
or loss:
Available-for-sale financial assets
Fair value gains/(losses) during the year (Note 15.1) 2,419,841 (868,358)
Total other comprehensive income,/(loss) 2,410,841 (B68,358)

= of -
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Property, plant and equipment
Leaschold Furniture
improve- and Office
ments fixtures equipment Vehicles Total
HES HES HES HKS HEKS
As at 1t January 2016
Cost 20,658,185 4,403,383 13,654,081 1,501,618 40,407,267
Accumulated depreciation (13.073,218)  (3.685513) (8,751,425) (845,800) (27,255,565)
Net book amount 6,684,967 TI7.870 4,902,655 Ba5,800 13,151,302
Year cnded 31 December
2016
Opening net book amount 6,684,067 717,870 4,902,656 B45,809 13,151,302
Additions 511,346 90,245 L977,760 - 2,379,351
Diepreciation (Mote 8) {3.772,973) (214,606) {2,700,948) {s63.873) {7.252,400)
Closing net book amount 3,223,340 503,500 4,179,468 281,536 8,278,253
As at 31 December 2016
Coast 20,569,531 4,493,628 15,631,841 1,691,618 42,786,618
Accumulated depreciation (17,746,100)  (3,900,119) (11,452,373) (1,409,682} (34,508,363)
Netbook amount 3223340 593,599 4,179,468 281,936 8,278,253
Year ended 31 December
2017
Opening net book amount 3,223,340 593,509 4,175,468 281,936 8,278,253
Additions 5071350 - 22,603 - 5:993,953
Disposals (16.342,954)  {3.411,520) (6,878,797) - (26,833,071)
Depreciation (Moke 8) (6,277,251} {216,462) (2,886,255) (281,536) (9,661,004)
Write back of depreciation on
disposals 16,542,954 341,320 6,877,507 - 26,831,781
Closing net book amount 2,017,430 ATT047 2,214,526 = 4,600,012
As at 31 December 2017
Cost 9,407,927 1,082,308 9,675.647 1,691,618 21,947,500
Accumulated depreciation (7,480,488) (705,261) {7,461,121) (1,691,618) (17,258,488)
Net book amount 2,017,439 377047 2,214,520 - 4,609,002
- 29 -
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Intangible assets
Computer
software Others Total
HEK$ HES HEKS

As at 1 January 2016
Cost 22,519,749 - 22,519,749
Accumulated amortisation (9,859,116) - (9,859,116)
Net book amount 12,660,633 - 12,660,633
Year ended 31 December 2016
Opening net book ameunt 12,660,633 - 12,660,653
Additions 1,949,522 - 1,049,522
Amortisation (Note 8) (3,863,129) - (3,863,129)
Closing net book amount 10,747,026 - 10,747,026
As at 31 December 2016
Cost 24,469,271 - 24,469,271
Accumulated amortisation (13,722,245) - {13,722,245)
Net book amount 10,747,026 - 10,747,026
Year ended 31 December 2017
Opening net book amount 10,747,026 = 10,747,026
Additions 1,687,070 7,500,000 9,187,070
Disposals (4,367,457) - (4,367,457)
Amortisation (Note 8) (3,756,773) - (3,756,773)
Write back of amortisation on disposals 4,367,457 - 4,367,457
Closing net book amount 8,677,323 7,500,000 16,177,323
As at 31 December zo17
Cost 21,788,884 7,500,000 20,288 B84
Accumulated amortisation (13,111,561) - (13,111,561)
Net book amount 8,677,323 7,500,000 16,177,323

_30_
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Investment in subsidiaries

Corporate structure
2017 2016
HKS HEKS
Unlisted shares
As at 1 January 38,464,394 38,464,394
Impairment loss (Note g) (15,751,634) -
Disposals (22,712,760) -
As at 31 December - 38,464,394

As at 31 December 2016, the Company had direct interests in the following principal subsidiary:

Place of Principal activitics Issued share Effective interest held
MName incorporation  and place of operation  capital Directly Indirectly
Valve Partmers Taiwan Inwvestmient management 50,000,000 62.05% -
Concord Asset in Taiwan crdinary shares
Management of MT%10 each
Co., Lad, VP
Conegrd”)

Impairment provision on the investment in a subsidiary of HK$15,751,634 was recognised in
“Other gains/(losses) — net” for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

On 29 June 2017, the Company entered into a sale and purchase agreement with a third party to
sell its 62.05% equity interest in VP Concord, an investment management business in Taiwan, for
a consideration of HK$35 million (representing the Company's 62.05% ownership). The
transaction was campleted in August 2017. A gain on disposal of HK$11.2 million was recognised.

Dietails of the disposal of VP Concord:

HKS
Consideration
Cash consideration 34,852,443
Disposal related costs (966,747)
Net consideration 33,885,696

_31_
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14 Investment in subsidiaries (continued)
14.1 Corporate structure (continued}

The assets and liabilities of VP Concord disposed of at the completion date comprise:

HKS
Property, plant and equipment 597,907
Intangible assets 51,876
Other assets 6,415,000
Investments 1,463,278
Fee receivables, prepayments and other receivables 678,004
Time deposits and eash and cash equivalents 42,875,275
Other payables and accrued expenses (B96,914)
Net assets disposed of 51,284,426
Mon-controlling interests (28,571,666)
Share of net assets disposed of 22,712,760
Net consideration 95,885,606
Gain on disposal 11,172,056
Net cash flows on disposal of subsidiaries
Consideration settled in cash 34,852,443
Disposal related costs {966,747)
Time deposits and cash and cash equivalents disposed of (42,875,275)
Net cash outflows in respect of the disposal (8,989,579)

14.2 Interests in structured entities

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Company is deemed to hold a controlling interest in the

following investrent fund.
Effective interest held
Place of 2017 2016 .
MName incorporation Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
Value Partners Big Data Fund  Cayman Islands oh% - g5% -

-32-.
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Investments

Investments include the following:

Finanecial assets at fair
value through profit or Available-for-sale
loss financial assets Total
2017 2016 2017 2016 017 2016
HES HES HEKS HES HES HES

Listed securitics (by place

of listing)
Exuity securities -~ Hong Kong 64,984,178 - - - 64,984,178 -
Erquity securities — Unfted

Stales 238,159 13,070 - - 238450 163,070
Investment funds - Hong Kong 58925000 46,002,500 - - 58,925,000 46,092,500
Market value of listed

securities 124,147,337 46,175,570 - < 447337 46a75sT0
Unlisted securities (by

place of incorporation

establishment)
Erquity securities - Singapore - - 8,004,220 5.594,388 8,014,229 5,594,388
Iovestment funds - Cayman

Islands 401,297,806 250,428,552 - - qon297,806 250,428,552
Investment funds — Hoog Eong 44,995,572 37,507,000 = - 44,995,572 37,907,000
Investment funds - Treland 124,050,716 38,062,800 - - 10,080,716 38062800
Fair value of unlisted

seeurites 575.353,004 326393352 8,014,220 5594388 5833567323 331002740
Derivative financial

instruments
Equity swap 53305326 33,654,940 . - 51305336 33,654,940
Falr value of derivative

financial instruments 53,305,326 33.654,040 . - 53305326 33.654.040
Total investments 752,805,757 406,228,862 8,014,229 5.504,388 760,810,085 411,823,250
Representing:
Non-current bonabaare 406065702 8,014,220 5,594,388  jojarhsol  qubboa8o
Current 53543485 163,070 = - 5%543.485 165,070
Total investments 752,805,757 406,228,862 8,014,220 5504388 7oofi0086  qu,823.250

In addition to above, some investments were classified as held-for-sale as at 31 December 2016,
Refer to note 16 for details.

Interests in unconsolidated structured entities
The company provided seed capital to set up a number of investment funds, of which the
Company acts as an investment manager or investment advisors, As at 31 December 2017 and

2016, expect for the investment fund disclosed in note 14.2, the Company determined that all of
these investment funds are unconsolidated structured entities. Refer to note 27.3 for details.

_33_
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Investments {continued)
Interests in unconsolidated structured entities (continued)

The maximum exposure to loss for all interests in strueture entities is the carrying value of the
investments in investment funds (refer to note 27.3) and fees receivable as shown in the statement
of finaneial position. The size of the investment funds ranges from US$6 million to US$4.5 billion
(2016: US$1 million to US$3.5 billion). During the year, the Company did not provide financial
support to unconsolidated structured entities and has no intention of providing financial or other
support. .

Investments are denominated in the following currencies:

2017 2016

HES$ HES
Hong Kong dollar 177,408,782 79,751,935
Renminbi 168,377 -
Singapore dollar 8,014,229 5,594,388
United States dollar 574,561,347 326,055,974
Others 667,251 420,053
Total investments 760,819,986 411,823,250
Available-for-sale financial assets
The movement of available-for-sale financial assets is as follows:

2017 2016

HEKS HEKS
Beginning of the year 5:594,388 6,462,740
Fair value gains/(losses) (Note 11) 2,410,841 {868,358)
End of the year 8,014,229 5,504,388

There was no impairment provision on available-for-sale financial assets as at 31 December 2017
(2016: Nil).

Investments in associates measured at fair value
Where the Company has an interest in the investment funds that give the Company significant

influence, but not control, the Company records such investments at fair value. Details of such
investment funds are summarized as follow.

Place of Interest held
Name incorporation 2017 2016
Value Partners Fixed Income SPC Cayman Islands 25% -
— Value Partners Credit Opportunities
Fund SP @
Value Partners Ireland Fund Ple Ireland 259 21%
=Value Partners Health Care Fund
- 34 -
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMEBER 2017

Investments (continued)

Investments in associates measured at fair value (continued)

2017 2016
HKS HKS
Value Partners Fixe
— Value Partners Credit Opportunities Fund SP ()
Net asset value 796,727,000 -
Profit for the year and total comprehensive income 13,041,000 -
Value Partners Ireland Fund Ple
= Value Partners Health Care Fund
Net asset value 209,207,000 177,093,000
Profit for the year and total comprehensive income 38,143,000 1,324,000

() The fund was launched on 20 November 2007,

The fair value of the Company’s interest in such investment funds are summarized in Note 27.3.
Investments held-for-sale

The Company classified the following interests in investment funds as held-for-sale as the

Company intends to market these funds and dilute its holdings as soon as practically possible to a
level where its aggregate economic interests does not constitute a control.

2017 2016
HEKS HKs$
Investment funds - Taiwan - 13,668,065
Total investments held-for-sale - 13,668,065

As at 51 December 2017 and 2016, the major assets of the above funds were listed equity securities.
Income recognised in other losses — net relating to investments held-for-sale

o017 2016
HKS HES

Change in unrealised gains/losses on investments
held-for-sale - (448,631)
Realised losses on investments held-for-sale (1,308,666)

Net losses on investments held-for-sale

(1,847,297)

-3Er
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Fees receivable

The carrying amounts of fees receivable approximate their fair value due to the short-term
maturity. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying amounts of
the fees receivable. The Company did not hold any eollateral as security as at 31 December 2017
(zo16: Nil).

Fees receivable from investment management activities are mainly due at the end of the relevant
valuation period of the investment funds and managed accounts. However, some of these fees
receivable are only due after the relevant valuation period as a result of eredit periods granted to
certain investment funds and managed accounts which are generally within one month. The
ageing analysis of fees receivable that were past due but not impaired is as follows:

2017 2010
HEKS HKS
Fees receivable that were past due but not impaired
1-30 days 453,118 490,381
over 90 days 2,537 -
455,655 490,381
Fees receivable that were within credit period 335,546,632 28,245,260
Total fees receivable 336,002,287 28,735,641
Fees receivable are denominated in the following currencies:
2017 2016
HKS HES%
Hong Kong dollar 120,114,087 22 080 =6G
United States dollar 215,887,300 6,483,072
Total fees receivable 336,002,287 28,735,641

Fees receivable from investment management activities are generally deducted from the net asset
value of the investment funds and managed accounts and paid directly by the administrator or
custodian of the investment funds and managed accounts at the gnd of the relevant valuation

period or credit period, as appropriate.

There was no impairment provision on fees receivable as at 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

Cash and cash equivalents
2017 2016
HEKs HES
Cash at banks and in hand 56,286,436 41,040,395
Short-term bank deposits 799,883,973  1,221,662,722
Deposits with brokers 6,466,466 5,329,754
Total cash and cash equivalents 862,636,875  1,269,032,87

-Sﬁ-
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following currencies:

2017 2016
HKS HKS
Hong Kong dollar 574,582,818 526,392,615
Renminbi 4,191,238 9,752,702
United States dollar 273,119,061 737,488,022
Others 10,343,758 1,309,442
Total cash and cash equivalents 862,636,875  1,260,032,871
Issued equity
Share Share
Number of shares capital premium Taotal
Class A Class B HES HEKs HEs
As at 1 January 2016,
31 December 2016,
1 January 2017 and
31 December 2017 11,409,450 3,803,318 1,854,704 41,913,288 53767092

As at 31 December 2017, the total authorised number of Class A ordinary shares and Class B
ordinary shares were 15,000,000 shares (2016: 15,000,000 shares) and 3,893,318 shares (2016:
4,893,318 shares) respectively with a par value of US$0.1 (2016: US$0.1) per share and all issued
shares were fully paid.

The ordinary shares are non-redeemable and are entitled to dividends. Each ordinary share
carries one vote. In the case of winding up of the Company, ordinary shares carry the right to
return the paid-up capital and any balance then remaining.

The Class A and Class B ordinary shares have the same rights with regard to voting and dividends
except in the event of liquidation, no distribution shall be made to the holders of Class A ordinary
shares unless the holders of Class B ordinary shares have received the full amount of their
liguidation values. In addition, any surplus assets after distribution to the holders of Class A and
Class B ordinary shares as mentioned above shall be distributed to the holders of Class B ordinary
shares ratably.

_3?_
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Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

The gross movements on the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are as follows:

Accelerated
tax
depreciation
HE$
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
As at 1 January 2016 (1,494,374)
Credited to the statement of comprehensive income (Note 10) 928,540
As at 31 December 2016 and 1 January zo17 (565,834)
Credited to the statement of comprehensive income (Note 10) 894,745
As at 31 December 2017 ' 328,011
The analyszis of deferred tax is as follows:
2017 2010
HEKS HES
Deferred tax assets/(Jiabilities):
- Deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) to be recovered within 12
months 328,011 (565.834)
328,011 (565.834)

Distribution fee expenses payable

The carrying amounts of distribution fee expenses payable approximate their fair value due to the
short-term maturity. The ageing analysis of distribution fee expenses payable is as follows:

2017 2016

HES HEKsS
0 - 30 days 9,075,249 7,563,508
31 to 60 days 84 -
61 to go days 03 -
Over go days 245 -
Total distribution fee expenses payable 9,075,671 7,563,508

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, all the disteibution fee expenses payable are denominated in
United States dollar.

-33_
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Financial instruments by category

2017 2016
HES HKS
Category of financial instruments
Loans and receivables
Amounts due from related companies 58,118,503 241,720,024
Fees receivable (Note 17) 336,002,287 28,735,641
Other receivables 16,020,467 11,623,258
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 18) 862,636,875  1,260,032,871
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Investments (Note 15) 752,805,757 406,228,862
Investments held-for-sale (Mote 16) - 13,668,065
Investment in a subsidiary (Note 14.2) 94,309,200 -
Awvailable-for-sale financial assets
Investments (Note 15) 8,014,229 5,594,388
Other financial liabilities at amortised cost
Amounts diie to related companies 14,065,546 26,055,029
Acerued bonus 651,170,800 51,540,652
Dividends payable 230,000,000 500,000,000
Distribution fee expenses payable (Note 21) 9,075,671 7,563,508
Other payables and accrued expenses 17,751,216 10,315,036
Amounts due to ultimate holding company 153,081,227 747,269,712
Amounts due to immediate holding company 15,704,857 59,578,666
Dividends
2017 2010
HKS HKs
Interim dividend of HE$15.030 (2016: HE$10.604) per
ordinary share 230,000,000 200,000,000

The interim dividend for 2017 of HK$230,000,000 was declared in 2017 (2016
HES$300,000,000) which was settled by the amount due to ultimate holding compary.

-39.—
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23 Net cash generated from operations
2017 2016
HKS HEKs

Profit/(loss) before tax 230,352,759 (26,814,142)
Adjustments for
Interest income (12,656,716} (8,126,022)
Dividend income (6,248,885) (15,090,671)
Depreciation and amortization 13,418,677 11,115,529
Other losses {141,500,892) 13,277,891
Changes in working capital
Other assets (8,576,993) 79,972
Amounts due from immediate holding company - 57,622,640
Amounts due from related companies 183,611,361 99,290,413
Fees receivable (307,266,646) 56,510,461
Deposit with brokers 141,407,205 (173,144,567)
Prepayments and other receivables (3,737.180) (1,172,605)
Amounts due to related companies 3,715,374 (123,848,653)
Accrued bonus 599,630,157 (87,172,997)
Distribution expenses payable 1,512,163 (54,105,421)
Other payables and accrued expenses 7,435,180 (6,570,269)
Amounts due to ultimate holding company (594,188,485) 239,125,934
Amounts due to immediate holding company (59,578,666 59,578,666
Net cash generated from operations 47,328,503 40,556,168

25 Commitments

25.1 Operating lease commitments

The Company leases various offices and office equipment under non-cancellable operating lease
agreements. The lease terms are between one year and five years, The majority of the lease
agreements are renewable at the end of the lease period at market rate. The foture aggregate
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

2017 2016
HKS HKS
Not later than one year 37,790,668 19,820,275
Later than one year and not later than five years 54,128,219 13,803,818
Total operating lease commitments 91,918,887 33,624,093

_40_
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Contingencies

The Company has contingent assets in respect of performance fees and contingent labilities in
respect of the performance fee element of distribution fee expenses arising in the ordinary course
of business.

Contingent assets

Performance fees for each performance period are generally caleulated annually with reference to
a performance fee valuation day. Performance fees are only recognised when they are earned by
the Company.

As a result, as at 31 December 2017 and 2016, performance fees in respect of performance periods
ending on a performance fee valuation day not falling within the corresponding year have not
been recognised. These performance fees may be receivable in cash if a positive performance
results on the performance fee valuation days, taking into consideration the relevant basis of
caleulation for the investment funds and managed accounts.

Contingent liabilities

The performance fee element of distribution fee expenses is based on the performance fees earned
by the Company. These distribution fee expenses are recognised when the performance fees are
earned by the Company and the Company is obliged to pay the corresponding distribution fee
expenses,

As a result, as at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the performance fee element of distribution fee
expenses in respect of performance periods ending on a performance fee valuation day not falling
within the eorresponding year have not been recognised. These distribution fee expenses may be
payable in cash if the performance fees are subsequently earned on the performance fee valuation
days.

Related-party transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the
other party or exercise significant influence over the cther party in making financial and operating
decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to ecommon contrel or
common significant influence.

Apart from those disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Company has also entered
into the following significant related-party transactions which, in the opinion of the directors,
were carried out in the ordinary and usual course of the Company’s business.

Summary of transactions entered into during the ordinary course of business with
related parties

2017 z01h
HKS HEKS
Corporate capital note issued by a company of which a close
family member of key management personnel is a member 2,500,000 -
Consultancy fee to a close family member of key
management personnel 289,000 289,000
- 41 -
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Related-party transactions (continued)
Key management compensation

Key management includes directors of the Company. The compensation to key management for
employee services is as follows:

2017 2016
HES HES

Management bonus, salaries and other short-term employee
benefits 306,299,054 33,794,554
Share-based compensation 23,740,025 45,960,216
Pension costs - mandatory provident fund scheme 54,000 54,000
Total key management compensation 330,093,079 79,817,770

Investments in investment funds which are managed/advised by the Company

The Company has interest in the following struetured entities, These are the investment funds
under the Company's management or advisory and from which it earns fees from investment
management or advisory activities and fund distribution activities. These investment funds
manage pools of assets from third party investors, and are through the issue of units/shares to
investors.

2017 20106
HKS HK=s
Value China ETF 6,003,000 4,671,300
Value Gold ETF 19,513,000 14,820,200
Value Japan ETF 10,864,000 8,932,000
Value Korea ETF 10,395,000 7,815,000
Value Partners Big Data Fund (MNote 14.2) 04,300,200 87,812,160
Value Partners China A-Share Select Fund @ 99,792 74,002
Value Pariners Classic Fund ® 329,992 -
Value Partners Concord Greater China Value Fund - 13,668,065
Value Partners Fixed Income SPC
- Value Partners Credit Opportunities Fund 8P (Note 15.2) @ 198,448,147 -
Value Partners Global Contrarian Fund (@ 17,262,650 13,715,800
Value Partners Ireland Fund Ple
- Value Partners Global E Market Bond Fund = 82,726,216 -
Value Partners Ireland Fund P
= Value Partners Health Care Fund (Note 15.2) 46,333,500 28,062,800
Value Partners Hedge Fund Limited 1,564 1,552
Value Partners High-Dividend Stocks Fund ® 365,280 265,868
Value Partners Intelligent Funds - China Convergenee Fund (@} 46,849,006 65,672,642
Value Partners Intelligent Funds - Chinese Mainland Focus
Fund 138,635,657 170,608,028
Value Partners Multi-Asset Fund 44,300,300 37,907,600
Value Taiwan ETF 12,150,000 9,765,000
Total investments in investment funds which are
managed/advised by the Company 728,587,204 473,801,077
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER zo017

Related-party transactions (continued)

Investments in investment funds which are managed/advised by the Company
(continued)

(a) The units held were Class A units.

(b} The units held were “C” units,

{c) The units held were Class A Ace, Class V Ace and Class Z Ace units.
{d) The Company has waived its voting rights in respect of its holdings.
(e The units held were Class A Acc and Class X Acc units.

(f)  Theshares held were management shares

(g) The units held were Class A2 MDis units.

Amounts due from and to related companies, ultimate holding company and
immediate holding company

The amounts due to ultimate holding company and immediate holding company are unsecured,
non-interest bearing and are not repayable within 12 months after the reporting date.

The amounts due from and due to related companies are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
have no fixed repayment terms,

Share of management fees and performance fees and fee rebates from immediate
holding company and related companies

The Company shared management fees and performance fees from immediate holding company
and related companies for the provision of sub-investment management services to the
investment funds and managed accounts under the management of immediate holding company
and related companies. The Company also received fee rebates from immediate holding company
and related companies in relation to the Company's investments in the investment funds under
the management of immediate holding company and related companies. Total fees from
immediate holding company and related companies for the year ended 31 December 2017 were
HK$358,809 (2016: HE$998,670).

Service fees from ultimate and immediate holding companies and related
companies

The Company received service fees from its immediate holding company and related companies
for the reimbursement of overheads and operating expenses in respect of general administrative
services. In 2017, the service fee also included an amount of HK$400,253,400 in connection with
the bonus incurred by the Company on behalf of its immediate holding company. Service fees
from its immediate holding company and related companies for the year ended 31 December 2017
were HE$601,706,185 (2016: HK$182,411,030).

Service fees to ultimate holding company and related companies
The Company was charged service fees by its ultimate holding company and related companies for
the provision of listing services, marketing and business networking services and general

administrative services to the Company. Service fees to ultimate holding company and related
companies for the vear ended 31 December 2017 were HE$39,745,846 (2016: HE$23,419,825).
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMEBER 2017

Related-party transactions (continued)
Dividend distribution to immediate holding company

An interim dividend of HES$230,000,000 {2o16: HE$300,000,000) was declared by the
Company to its immediate holding company for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Management fee and performance fee income

The Company acts as the fund manager for underlying funds it manages and received the
management fee and performance fee income.
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Bank of Bermuda Cayman Limited

2017 12 31 7,000,000 765,450

1988 21

HSBC Institutional Trust Services Asia Limited

2017 12 31 50,000,000 697,000

1974

Aizawa Securities Co., Ltd.

2017 12 31 8,000,000,000
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HSBC Institutional Trust Services Asia Limited

Aizawa Securities Co., Ltd.

Bank of Bermuda Cayman Limited

HSBC Institutional Trust Services Asia Limited

Aizawa Securities Co., Ltd.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF VALUE PARTNERS
INTELLIGENT FUNDS - JA-VP CHINA NEW

CENTURY FUND
(A Cayman Islands Unit Trust)

Report on the audit of financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of JA-VP China New Century Fund (the “ Sub-fund”), a sub-fund of Value
Partners Intelligent Funds (the “Trust”), set out on pages 8 to 32, which comprise the statement of assets and liabilities
including the investment schedule as at 31 December 2017, and the statement of operations, the statement of changesin
net assets and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial disposition of the Sub-fund as at 31
December 2017, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles, and have been properly prepared in accordance with the relevant disclosure
provisions of the Trust Deed, as amended.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAS") issued by the Hong Kong
Ingtitute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsihilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsihilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Sub-fund in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Cayman Islands and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Satements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
all the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
s0, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of the Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund for the Financial Satements

The Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and for such internal control as the
Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material statement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund are responsible for assessing the Sub-
fund's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund either intend to liquidate the Sub-
fund or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

In addition, the Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund are required to ensure that the financial statements have been
properly prepared in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Trust Deed, as amended.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. In addition, we are required to assess whether the
financial statements of the Sub-fund have been properly prepared, in al material respects, in accordance with the
relevant provisions of the Trust Deed, as amended.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

I dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Sub-fund
sinternal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Manager's and the Trustee's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Sub-fund's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Sub-fund
to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

KPMG
Cayman Idands

25 April 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE SOLE SHAREHOLDER OF VALUE

PARTNERS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability)

Opinion
What we have audited

The financial statements of Value Partners Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 4 to 44, which comprise:

the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017,

the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the cash flow statement for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financia statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31
December 2017, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financia Reporting Standards (“HKFRSS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA™).

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAS’) and with reference to
Practice Note 820 (Revised) “The Audit of Licensed Corporations and Associated Entities of Intermediaries’ issued by
the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.
Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsihilitiesin accordance with the Code.

Responsibilities of Directors for the Financial Satements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financia statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, and for such internal control as the directors determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

In addition, the directors are required to ensure that the financial statements are in accordance with the records kept
under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and satisfy the requirements of the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures (Accounts and Audit) Rules.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE SOLE SHAREHOLDER OF VALUE

PARTNERS LIMITED (CONTINUED)
(Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability)

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. In addition, we are required to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are in accordance with the records kept under the Hong Kong Securities
and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and satisfy the requirements of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures
(Accounts and Audit) Rules.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSASs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s interna control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficienciesin internal control that we identify during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE SOLE SHAREHOLDER OF VALUE

PARTNERS LIMITED (CONTINUED)
(Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability)

Report on Matters under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and Hong Kong Securities
and Futures (Accounts and Audit) Rules of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance

In our opinion, the financial statements are in accordance with the records kept under the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and satisfy the requirements of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Accounts
and Audit) Rules.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 April 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF VALUE PARTNERS
INTELLIGENT FUNDS - JA-VP CHINA NEW

CENTURY FUND
(A Cayman Islands Unit Trust)

Report on the audit of financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of JA-VP China New Century Fund the “Sub-fund” , a sub-fund of Value
Partners Intelligent Funds the“Trust” , set out on pages 8 to 39, which comprise the statement of assets and liabilities
including the investment schedule as at 31 December 2016, the statement of operations, the statement of changes in net
assets and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial disposition of the Sub-fund as at 31
December 2016 and of itsfinancial transactions and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles, and have been properly prepared in accordance with the relevant disclosure provisions of
the Trust Deed, as amended.

Basisfor Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAS") issued by the Hong Kong
Ingtitute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Sub-fund in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors Report Thereon

The Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
all the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditors report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
arerequired to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund for the Financial Statements

The Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and for such internal control as the
Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material statement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund are responsible for assessing the Sub-
fund's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund either intend to liquidate the Sub-
fund or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

In addition, the Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund are required to ensure that the financial statements have been
properly prepared in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Trust Deed, as amended.
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Auditors Responsibilitiesfor the Audit of the Financial Satements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liahility to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. In addition, we are required to assess whether the
financial statements of the Sub-fund have been properly prepared, in al material respects, in accordance with the
relevant provisions of the Trust Deed, as amended.

As part of an audit in accordance with HK SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also

I dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Sub-fund
sinternal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Manager's and the Trustee's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Sub-fund's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Sub-fund
to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

KPMG

20 April 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT TO THE SOLE SHAREHOLDER OF
VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability)

Opinion
What we have audited

The financial statements of Value Partners Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 4 to 43, which comprise:
the statement of balance sheet as at 31 December 2016;
the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
the cash flow statement for the year then ended; and
the notes to the financia statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31
December 2016, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA™).

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAS’) and with reference to
Practice Note 820 (Revised) “The Audit of Licensed Corporations and Associated Entities of Intermediaries’ issued by
the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasisfor our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”) , and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Responsibilities of Directorsfor the Financia Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financia statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, and for such internal control as the directors determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ahility to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE SOLE SHAREHOLDER OF
VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the British Virgin I1slands with limited liability)

Responsibilities of Directors for the Financial Statements (Continued)

In addition, the directors are required to ensure that the financial statements are in accordance with the records kept
under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and satisfy the requirements of the Hong
Kong Securities and Futures (Accounts and Audit) Rules.

Auditor’' s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financia Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. In addition, we are required to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are in accordance with the records kept under the Hong Kong Securities
and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and satisfy the requirements of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures
(Accounts and Audit) Rules.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s interna control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE SOLE SHAREHOLDER OF
VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability)

Auditor’' s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financia Statements (Continued)
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financia statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficienciesin internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Matters under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and Hong Kong Securities
and Futures (Accounts and Audit) Rules of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance

In our opinion, the financial statements are in accordance with the records kept under the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and satisfy the requirements of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Accounts
and Audit)Rules.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 April 2017
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